
 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 18, 2023 at 5:05 PM  
Regular Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

AGENDA 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

B.    INVOCATION 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D.    PRESENTATION OF ACHIEVEMENTS AND SERVICE AWARDS 

A. Steve Brown - Retirement 

B. Phillip Daniels, Administrator of E911, Serving as Vice President of NENA 911 
since April  

E.    ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Announcement of Public Meeting 

Notice is hereby given that at its meeting to be held on Tuesday, January 16, 

2024 at 5:00 p.m. at its regular meeting place, the Police Jury Meeting Room of 
the Police Jury Annex, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield Louisiana, the Police Jury 

of the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana, plans to consider adopting a 
resolution ordering and calling an election to be held in the Parish of DeSoto, 
State of Louisiana to authorize the renewal of an ad valorem tax therein. 

F.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

H.    PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

I.     COUNSEL'S REPORT 

J.     ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

2. Michael Norton, Parish Administrator 

K.     LOBBYIST'S REPORT 

3. Chance McNeely with Delta Resource Group 

L.    TREASURER'S FINANCIAL REPORT 

Page 1



Agenda DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 18, 2023 

 

4. Accept the Financial Statements as of November 30, 2023 and Year to Date 
Budget to actual report 

M.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

5. Approve the November 20, 2023 Regular Meeting, November 27, 2023 Budget 
and Finance Committee Meeting, November 28, 2023 Budget and Finance 

Committee Meeting, December 4, 2023 Administrative, Budget and Finance, 
Buildings and Properties, Personnel, Policy and Procedures, Solid Waste, 

Insurance, Road and Special Meeting 

N.    OLD BUSINESS 

6. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution requesting the designation of 

certain census tract Block Groups enumerated below as Enterprise Zones, for 
participation in the Enterprise Zone Program Administered by the Louisiana 

Department of Economic Development and sign the Enterprise Zone Program 
Approval Letter 

O.    NEW BUSINESS 

7. Authorize the President to sign the Indemnification with Louisiana Midstream 
Gas Services LLC for access to their pipeline on the north side of Mundy Landfill 

to perform erosion control. 

8. Authorize reimbursing the property owner at 355 Fire Tower Road for cutting 
and removal of a tree in the Road Right of Way which fell during a storm 

P.    RESOLUTIONS 

9. Approve a Resolution adopting an Operating Budget of Revenue and 

Expenditure for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2024 and Ending 
December 31, 2024. 

10. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution appointing Michael 

Rister as a director to the board of the Louisiana Local Government 
Environmental Facilities and Community Development Authority for a two year 

term 

Q.    ORDINANCES 

R.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

11. Recommends approving the 2024 Holiday Schedule 

12. Recommends approving the 2024 Meeting Schedule 

13. Recommends approving the 2024 Liquor License Renewals 

14. Recommends approving the 2024 DeSoto Parish Tourism Commission Budget 

S.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

Page 2



Agenda DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 18, 2023 

 

15. Recommends selecting Thomas, Cunningham, Broadway and Todtenbier, CPA's 
for the 2023-2025 audits 

T.    BUILDINGS AND PROPERTIES & PARKS AND RECREATIONAL ITEMS 

16. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a 3 year renewal service 
agreement with Johnson Controls for HVAC and Controls at the Courthouse with 

recommended changes per legal counsel 

U.    INSURANCE ITEMS 

17. Recommends approving the Property and Casualty and Workers Compensation 

Insurance for 2024 

V.   PERSONNEL ITEMS 

18. Recommends approving the Compensation Study 

19. Recommends approving the new step increase schedule 

W.    ROAD ITEMS 

20. Recommends authorizing the President to sign the Change Order No. 1 to 
include asphalt resurfacing on Cody Lane 

21. Recommends authorizing the President to sign Change Order No. 3 for sheet 
pile headwall on Mounce Road (2016 FEMA) 

22. Recommends authorizing the Parish Administrator to sign the agreement 

between owner and engineer for professional service on Brazzel Road. 

23. Recommends authorizing compensation to Pat Loftus for fence replacement on 

Powell Road as per the servitude agreement 

X.    SOLID WASTE ITEMS 

24. Recommends accepting the price increase for Municipal Solid Waste from 

Bossier per the recommendation of Live Oak from $23.00 per ton to $28.00 per 
ton for 2024, $30.50 per ton for 2025, and $33.00 per ton for 2026. 

Y.  ADJOURN 

Page 3



MEMORANDUM 

TO: DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

FROM: The Delta Resource Group 

RE: December Update 

DATE: December 18, 2023 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

This memo has been prepared to provide an update on legislative and other governmental 

matters to the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 

Gubernatorial Cabinet Appointments: 

 

● LSP Superintendent Colonel Robert Hodges: 

○ Robert Hodges currently holds the position of Region 2 Patrol Major. Major 

Hodges is a 28-year veteran with Louisiana State Police.  He began his career in 

1995 as a Patrol Trooper in Troop B (Kenner) and has held various assignments 

throughout his LSP career in Patrol and Investigations. Major Hodges, a native of 

New Orleans, graduated from Brother Martin High School and earned a Bachelor 

of Arts degree in Criminal Justice from Louisiana State University.  He previously 

served as an Intelligence Officer in the Louisiana Army National Guard Reserve.          

● Fire Marshal Bryan Adams: 

○ Bryan Adams’ career in fire and emergency management service spans over 40 

years. He has also served in a variety of roles in state and local government with 

experience in risk management, budget management, human resources and 

information technology. Bryan is currently a commission member of the 

Louisiana Fire & Emergency Training Academy and has been a huge part of the 

transition of that program to the Office of State Fire Marshal. Bryan was 

appointed as the recovery officer for several Hurricanes that impacted Jefferson 

Parish and Louisiana including Hurricane Katrina, Rita, Gustav, Ike and most 

recently Hurricane Ida.  He also served as the logistics coordinator for the BP oil 

Spill in Grand Isle and the 2016 Baton Rouge Flood. Bryan resides in Westwego, 

Louisiana.  

● Adjutant General Thomas Friloux: 

○ General Friloux grew up in the Lafayette area and has been a member of the 

Guard since 1988. In over 35 years of service as a Louisiana Guardsman, he has 

risen through the ranks from a private to a one-star general and currently serves 

as the Louisiana National Guard’s Director of the Joint Staff. General Friloux has 

mobilized for war three times in his career and deployed to Iraq twice for combat 

tours. He was twice awarded the Bronze Star and is a recipient of the Purple 

Heart.   

● Richard Nelson-Secretary of the Louisiana Department of Revenue: 

○ Richard grew up in Mandeville, Louisiana. He earned a degree in Biological 

Engineering from LSU before attending LSU Law School. After graduating from 

law school, he was selected for the Foreign Service of the U.S. Department of 

Page 4



State and moved to Washington. He served all over the world for seven years as 

a State Department Officer and diplomat, protecting American embassies 

overseas from terrorism and espionage. Just months before their next overseas 

assignment, Richard had the opportunity to move his family home to Mandeville. 

He was elected to the Louisiana House of Representatives in 2019 where he 

focused on improving Louisiana’s tax competitiveness and elementary school 

literacy. Richard is an engineer, attorney, and runs his own consulting firm. He 

and his family attend Christ Episcopal Church in Covington. Richard is committed 

to improving the opportunity for his three sons, Michael, 9, Arthur, 7, and Jack, 4, 

and for all the citizens of this great state. 

● Colonel Charlton Meginley-Secretary of the Louisiana Department of Veterans Affairs: 

○ Colonel Meginley served over 20 years on active duty as a Judge Advocate for 

the Air Force, retiring as an Appellate Military Judge on the Air Force Court of 

Criminal Appeals. He currently serves as the General Counsel for the 

Department of State, Office of R. Kyle Ardoin, Colonel Meginley is originally from 

Alexandria, and received an undergraduate degree from the University of 

Louisiana Monroe and his law degree from the Louisiana State University Law 

Center.   

● Ernest Legier, Jr.–Secretary of the Louisiana Department of Alcohol and Tobacco: 

○ Ernest Legier, Jr. is an experienced attorney and executive with thirty years of 

experience leading projects and organizations. He has worked for Louisiana 

Alcohol and Tobacco Control for the last eight years, including serving as 

Commissioner the last three years. He is the currently serving as president of the 

National Conference of State Liquor Administrators (NCSLA).  An honorably 

discharged veteran of the Louisiana National Guard, he earned a B.A. in Political 

Science from the University of New Orleans (1992), a J.D. from Loyola University 

New Orleans (1995), and an MBA from the University of New Orleans in 2020. 

Mr. Legier is active in his community and serves on the board for several 

organizations. He has been married for 30 years to the Honorable Kelly M. Legier 

and has 3 adult sons, Trey, Jonathan and Nicholas. 

● Previously mentioned appointments: 

○ DOA Commissioner: Taylor Barras - former Speaker of the House from Iberia 

Parish. Banker by trade. 

○ DOA Deputy Commissioner: Patrick Goldsmith - former long-time staff directory 

for the House Appropriations Committee.  

○ DEQ Secretary: Aurelia Skipwith Giacometto - Former USFWS official under the 

Trump Administration. First African American female to serve as DEQ Secretary.  

 

Gubernatorial Inauguration 

 

● The Governor’s inauguration will take place on January 8, 2024.  

 

State Legislature Updates: 

 

Page 5



● 2024 Organizational Session 

○ To convene at 10:00 a.m. on Monday, January 8, 2024. 

○ Final adjournment no later than Wednesday, January 10, 2024. 

○ Senate President and House Speaker will be determined. 

■ Committee assignments and chairmanships will follow.  

● 2024 First Special Session 

○ The Louisiana Legislature is expected to meet in mid January to deliberate over 

its congressional maps, including the creation of a second minority district.  

● 2024 Regular Legislative Session 

○ To convene at noon on Monday, March 11, 2024. 

○ Final adjournment no later than 6:00 p.m. on Monday June 3, 2024. 

○ Non-fiscal session with no limitations on number of bills filed per member.  

 

State Budget Updates 

● DOA Commissioner Jay Dardenne and Governor Edwards are highlighting the state’s 

budget stability as they exit.  

● A surplus is again projected for the current and forthcoming fiscal years. The Revenue 

Estimating Conference met December 14.  

● The .45 cent sales tax is slated to fall off the books in FY 25 unless the legislature 

renews it. This tax equates to somewhere between $500M to $1B to the state general 

fund. 

○ The general fund is also where the severance tax goes. 

○ The general fund also determines how much money can be bonded or otherwise 

allocated to capital outlay.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

November 20, 2023 at 5:00 PM  
Regular Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 1C Keith Parker 
District 2 Kyle Kennington 

District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

District 4B Jeri Burrell 
District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 5 Reggie Roe 
District 6 Rodriguez Ross 

 
ABSENT 
District 1B B. D. Mitchell 

 

B.    INVOCATION 

Given by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by District 6 Ross. 
 

D.    PRESENTATION OF ACHIEVEMENTS AND SERVICE AWARDS 

None 

E.    ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The 4H is having their Christmas Party on December 8, 2023 
 

F.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

Page 33



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury November 20, 2023 

 

Approval the final quantity adjustment change Order No. 3 for Powell Road with a 
reduction in cost of $4,156.66 

 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, District 3 Baker, 

District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

Authorize the President to sign the updated Indemnification with Nabors Property north of 

the Landfill in conjunction with construction of the Bio-Methane Gas Processing 
 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, District 3 Baker, 

District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

Authorize the Road Department to replace a culvert on Hwy 175 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 6 Ross. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, District 3 Baker, 

District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

H.    PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

None 

I.     COUNSEL'S REPORT 

None 

J.     ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

1. Michael Norton, Parish Administrator 

Mr. Norton presented his report and answered questions posed by individual 
Jurors 

 

K.     LOBBYIST'S REPORT 

2. Chance McNeely with the Delta Resource Group 

Page 34



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury November 20, 2023 

 

Mr. McNeely presented his report and answered questions posed by individual 
Jurors 

 

L.    TREASURER'S FINANCIAL REPORT 

3. Accept the Financial Statements as of October 31, 2023 and Year to Date 

Budget to actual report 

Ms. Garcia, Parish Treasurer, presented the Financial Report ending October 31, 

2023 and reported two (2) deficits. 
 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

M.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

4. Motion to approve October 16, 2023 Regular Meeting, October 19, 2023 Budget 
and Finance Committee Meeting, November 2, 2023, Budget and Finance 

Committee Meeting, November 6, 2023 Administrative, Budget and Finance, 
Insurance, Solid Waste, Road, Airport and Special Meeting, November 9, 2023 
Budget and Finance and Insurance Committee Meeting. 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

N.    OLD BUSINESS 

5. Appoint James Martin to the DeSoto Parish Planning Commission for a 6 year 

term. 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

6. Award low bid for the David Means 4H Building Roof Replacement 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

Page 35



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury November 20, 2023 

 

7. Authorize the President to sign the updated Indemnification with Nabors 
Property North of the Landfill in conjunction with construction of the Bio-

Methane Gas Processing 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

O.    NEW BUSINESS 

8. Authorize the President to sign an agreement with Capital Area Finance 

Authority and the Certificate of DeSoto Parish Evidencing Public Approval of 
Bonds pursuant to section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended  

Item deleted from agenda  
 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

9. Authorize the President and Council to sign Lease Agreement 2024 Caterpillar 
Track Hoe with changes made per legal council (Already approved in budget) 

Authorize the President and Counsel to sign the Lease Agreement for a 2024 

Caterpillar Bulldozer with changes made per legal counsel  
 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 6 Ross. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 3 Baker, District 4A 

Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 
Roe, District 6 Ross 
Voting Abstaining: District 2 Kennington 

 

10. Accept the recommendation of the Parish Administrator and Human Resource 

Director for the Solid Waster Superintendent Position. 

Item deleted from agenda 

 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

Page 36



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury November 20, 2023 

 

11. Authorize the E-911 naming of Bossier Estates Private Drive in Logansport 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 5 Roe. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

12. Approve the final quantity adjustment change Order No. 3 for Powell Road with 

a reduction in cost of $4,156.66 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 5 Roe. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

13. Authorize the Road Department to replace a culvert on Hwy 175 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

P.    RESOLUTIONS 

14. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution for the assignment 
of State Agency Lease No. 20218 from SMEP all of their rights, titles and 

interest in said lease unto GEP Haynesville II, LLC 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

15. Recommends authorizing the President to sign the State Project No. H015175 
Obstruction Removal Runway 36 Approach Phase III (Construction) C. E. 

"Rusty" Williams Airport Agreement and Resolution 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

Q.    ORDINANCES 

R.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

Page 37



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury November 20, 2023 

 

16. Recommends accepting the resignation of Latarsha Shelton and appointing 
Bruce Carol to the EMS Board for the remaining term expiring in July of 2024 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

17. Recommends accepting the resignation of Michael Rister from the Waterworks 

District No. 1 Board 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

18. Recommends rescinding the authorization for Jurors and employees hunting on 

any Jury property. 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

19. Recommends accepting the resignation of Michael Rister and appoint Tim 

McQueary to the Fire District 9 Board of Commissioners serving the remaining 
term expiring in 2024 and re-appoint Ross Tilsbury and John Prince to the Fire 
District 9 Board of Commissioners for a two year term. 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

20. Recommends re-appointing Shirley Payne and Mary Thompson to the DeSoto 
Parish Tourism Commission serving a 3 year term. 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

21. Recommends re-appointing Michelle Abington Cooper, Margaret Dickerson and 
Leon Hunt to the DeSoto Parish Library Board of Control for a 5 year term. 

Page 38



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury November 20, 2023 

 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

22. Recommends amending the 2023 Holiday Schedule for the Christmas Holiday to 
change Friday and Monday (December 22-25) to Monday and Tuesday 

(December 25-26) 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

S.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

23. Recommends amending the budget to transfer $120,000 from the General Fund 

to the Office Of Community Service Fund. 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

T.    INSURANCE ITEMS 

24. Recommends staying with United Health Care as is effective January 1, 2024 

and later in the year look into changing to self insured 

Alternate motion to move forward with the self insured plan with Blue Cross 

Blue Shield at the 20% increase and freeze the employees premium rates 
where they currently are and to create a separate bank account for the self 

insured fund. 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 6 Ross. 
Voting Yea: District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D 

Boyd-Simpson, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 5 Roe - Motion failed 

Alternate Motion to defer back to the Insurance Committee. 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

Page 39



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury November 20, 2023 

 

U.    ROAD ITEMS 

25. Recommends authorizing the President to sign Change Order No. 2 for Road 

Drainage Improvements on Charlie Jones, Daw, Mounce and Nash Road - 2016 
FEMA 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

26. Recommends amending the Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with The Town of 

Logansport and amend the Road Budget in the amount of $29,000 for 
overlaying the remainder part of Lovell Lane. 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1C Parker, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B 
Burrell, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes, District 2 Kennington, District 4C Jones 
 

V.  ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
 

Page 40



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

November 28, 2023 at 5:00 PM  
Budget and Finance Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

OFFICERS 

Greg Baker, Chairman, Kyle Kennington, Trina Boyd-Simpson, Richard Fuller and B. D. 

Mitchell 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 
District 2 Kyle Kennington 

District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 4A Richard Fuller 
 

ABSENT 
District 1B B. D. Mitchell 

 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

1. Approve the 2024 General Fund Budget 

Motion to move Two Million to the sinking fund 

 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 2 Kennington, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 4A Fuller 

Motion to adopt the 2024 General Fund Budget as amended 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 2 Kennington, District 4D Boyd-

Simpson, District 4A Fuller 
 

Page 41



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury November 28, 2023 

 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 

 

Page 42



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

November 27, 2023 at 5:00 PM  
Budget and Finance Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

OFFICERS 
Greg Baker, Chairman, Kyle Kennington, Trina Boyd-Simpson, Richard Fuller and B. D. 

Mitchell 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 

District 2 Kyle Kennington 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

 
ABSENT 

District 1B B. D. Mitchell 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

1. Adopt the 2024 Road Budget 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 4A 

Fuller 
Voting Nay: District 2 Kennington 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

 

Page 43



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 04, 2023 at 5:03 PM 
 Personnel Committee Meeting 
 

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, 

Mansfield, LA 71052  101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052 

 

MINUTES 

Jeri Burrell, Chairwoman, Keith Parker, Ernel Jones, Kyle Kennington, and Trina Boyd-

Simpson 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 4B, Chairwoman Jeri Burrell 

District 1C Keith Parker 
District 2 Kyle Kennington 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

Delete Item 3  
 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 4B, Chairwoman Burrell, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson 
 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    PERSONNEL ITEMS 

1. Approve the Compensation Study 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 4B, Chairwoman Burrell, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Kennington, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson 
 

2. Approve the new step increase schedule 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 4B, Chairwoman Burrell, District 1C Parker, District 4C 

Page 44



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 04, 2023 

 

Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson 
Voting Nay: District 2 Kennington 

 

3. Conduct Interviews for Solid Waste Superintendent 

1. Bridget Tillman-Jackson 

2. Stanley Woodley 

3. Josh Bidleman 

Item deleted 

 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 
 

Page 45



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 04, 2023 at 5:01 PM  
Budget and Finance Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Greg Baker, Chairman, Kyle Kennington, Trina Boyd-Simpson, Richard Fuller and B. D. 
Mitchell 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 

District 2 Kyle Kennington 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
 
ABSENT 

District 1B B. D. Mitchell 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

1. Select Thomas, Cunningham, Broadway and Todtenbier, CPA's for the 2023-

2025 audits. 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 2 Kennington, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 4A Fuller 

 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

 

Page 46



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 04, 2023 at 5:04 PM  
Policy and Procedures Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Kyle Kennington, Chairman, Jimmy Holmes, Jeri Burrell, Trina Boyd-Simpson and Greg 
Baker 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 2, Chairman Kyle Kennington 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 4B Jeri Burrell 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 3 Greg Baker 

 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    POLICY AND PROCEDURES ITEMS 

1. Discuss and take action on eliminating Jury Committees  

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 4B Burrell 
Voting Nay: District 2, Chairman Kennington, District 1A Holmes, District 4D 

Boyd-Simpson, District 3 Baker 
 

2. Amend the Rules and By-Laws of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury of DeSoto Parish 

Louisiana Article III Rule 2 removing, "In the event an item is placed on an 
agenda which, by its very nature is considered confidential, including potential 

economic development projects, personnel matters, criminal investigations, 
litigation and other matters subject to the attorney-client privilege, the 

President may remove the item from the agenda, subject to consultation with 
the respective Committee Chairman." (Per Article IX Rule 3:Any of these rules 
may be changed by 2/3 votes of all members) 

Page 47



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 04, 2023 

 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 4B Burrell 

Voting Nay: District 2, Chairman Kennington, District 1A Holmes, District 4D 
Boyd-Simpson, District 3 Baker 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 

 

Page 48



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 04, 2023 at 5:02 PM  
Buildings and Properties & Parks and Recreational 

Committee 
 

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

B. D. Mitchell, Chairman, Ernel Jones, Richard Fuller, Kyle Kennington and Keith Parker 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 2 Kyle Kennington 

District 1C Keith Parker 
 
ABSENT 

District 1B, Chairman B. D. Mitchell 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    BUILDINGS AND PROPERTIES ITEMS 

1. Authorize the President to sign a 3 year renewal service agreement with 

Johnson Controls for HVAC and Controls at the Courthouse with recommended 
changes per legal counsel 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 
Voting Yea: District 4C Jones, District 4A Fuller, District 2 Kennington, District 

1C Parker 
 

E.    PARKS AND RECREATIONAL ITEMS 

F.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

 

Page 49



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 04, 2023 at 5:05 PM  
Solid Waste Committee  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Greg Baker, Chairman, B. D. Mitchell, Ernel Jones, Jimmy Holmes, and Richard Fuller 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
 
ABSENT 

District 1B B. D. Mitchell 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    SOLID WASTE ITEMS 

1. Accept the price increase for Municipal Solid Waste from Bossier per the 

recommendation of Live Oak from $23.00 per ton to $28.00 per ton for 2024, 
$30.50 per ton for 2025, and $33.00 per ton for 2026. 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4C Jones, District 4A Fuller 

Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
 

Page 50



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 04, 2023 at 5:00 PM  
Administrative Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A, Chairman Jimmy Holmes 
District 1C Keith Parker 
District 2 Kyle Kennington 

District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

District 4B Jeri Burrell 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 5 Reggie Roe 
District 6 Rodriguez Ross 

 
ABSENT 

District 1B B. D. Mitchell 
 

B.   INVOCATION 

Given by District 6 Ross. 
 

C.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by District 6 Ross. 
 

D.   PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

None 

E.    LEGAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 

None 

F.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

Page 51



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 04, 2023 

 

Accept the Special Event Permit application for Headcheck Stables located at 269 Ware 
Road on December 23, 2023  

Motion made by District 1A, Chairman Holmes, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-

Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Larry Russo - discussed Item 7 

Dudley Glenn - discussed Item 7 

Dwight Gatlin - discussed funds for a Christmas Celebration 

H.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

1. Approve the 2024 Holiday Schedule 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Kennington, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C 
Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

2. Approve the 2024 Meeting Schedule 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 1A, Chairman Holmes. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Kennington, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C 

Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

3. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution requesting the designation of 

certain census tract Block Groups enumerated below as Enterprise Zones, for 
participation in the Enterprise Zone Program Administered by the Louisiana 

Department of Economic Development and sign the Enterprise Zone Program 
Approval Letter. 

Deferred to the Regular Meeting 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Kennington, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C 
Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

Page 52



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 04, 2023 

 

4. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution appointing Michael Rister as a 
director to the board of the Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities 

and Community Development Authority for a two year term. 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 5 Roe. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Kennington, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C 
Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

5. Approve the 2024 Liquor License Renewals 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 3 Baker, 
District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, 

District 6 Ross 
Voting Abstaining: District 2 Kennington, District 4A Fuller 
 

6. Approve the 2024 DeSoto Parish Tourism Commission Budget 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 6 Ross. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Kennington, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D 
Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

Voting Abstaining: District 4B Burrell 
 

7. Authorize changing the signs from Garland Scout Ranch to Kinsey Scout 

Reservation 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 6 Ross. 

Voting Yea: District 3 Baker 
Voting Nay: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Kennington, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D 
Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe 
Voting Abstaining: District 6 Ross 

 

8. Authorize the President to sign the Resolution and Agreement for Legal and 

Consulting Services with Oats & Marino for Westdale Plantation Road and Bridge 
Project. 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 6 Ross. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Kennington, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C 

Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

9. Accept the Special Event Permit application for Headcheck Stables located at 

269 Ware Road on December 23, 2023  

Page 53



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 04, 2023 

 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones 

Voting Nay: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Kennington, District 3 Baker, District 4B Burrell, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, 
District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

I.     ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 1A, Chairman Holmes. 

 

Page 54



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 04, 2023 at 5:30 PM  
Special Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Rodriguez Ross, President • Greg Baker, Vice President 
Michael Norton, Administrator • Jodi Zeigler, Secretary • Lilliana Garcia, Treasurer 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 1C Keith Parker 
District 2 Kyle Kennington 

District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 5 Reggie Roe 
District 6 Rodriguez Ross 
 

ABSENT 
District 1B B. D. Mitchell 

 

B.    INVOCATION 

Done in previous meeting 

 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Done in previous meeting 

D.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

E.    ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

1. Amend the 2024 General Budget in the amount of $33,000 for the Multicultural 

Center. 

 

Page 55



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 04, 2023 

 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

2. Authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement and amend 
the 2023 General Budget in the amount of $4,000 for St. Peters Church of God 

in Christ for assistance to the 2023 Christmas Drive 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

3. Amend the proposed 2024 General Budget in the amount of $10,000 for the 
Stonewall Parade 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

F.    NEW BUSINESS 

4. Recommends renewing United Health Care Insurance with HPL Benefits and 

absorb the cost increase until March 31, 2024 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 5 Roe. 
Voting Yea: District 1C Parker, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B 

Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 
Ross 

Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes, District 2 Kennington 
 

5. Amend the 2024 Proposed General Budget in the amount of $33,000 for the 

Multicultural Center 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, District 3 Baker, District 
4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, 

District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes 
 

6. Amend the proposed 2024 General Budget in the amount of $10,000 for the 
Parade in Stonewall. 

Page 56



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 04, 2023 

 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 
Voting Yea: District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, District 3 Baker, District 

4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, 
District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes 

 

7. Approve the Proposed 2024 Operating and Capital Budget as amended  

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 

Voting Yea: District 1C Parker, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B 
Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 

Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes, District 2 Kennington 

 

8. Authorize the President to sign the Resolution and Agreement for Legal and 
Consulting Services with Oats & Marino for Westdale Plantation Road and Bridge 

Project. 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

9. Authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement and amend 

the 2023 General Budget in the amount of $4,000 for St. Peters Church of God 
in Christ for assistance to the 2023 Christmas Drive 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1C Parker, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B 
Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes, District 5 Roe 
Voting Abstaining: District 2 Kennington 
 

10. Accept the recommendation of the Parish Administrator and Human Resource 
Director for the Solid Waste Superintendent. 

Deferred to the January Committee Meeting  

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1C Parker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C 
Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes, District 2 Kennington, District 3 Baker 

 

G.    ADJOURN 

Page 57



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 04, 2023 at 5:06 PM  
Insurance Committee  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Keith Parker, Chairman, B. D. Mitchell, Trina Boyd-Simpson, Jimmy Holmes and Richard 
Fuller 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1C, Chairman Keith Parker 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
 

ABSENT 
District 1B B. D. Mitchell 

 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    INSURANCE ITEMS 

1. Approve the Property and Casualty and Workers Compensation Insurance for 
2024 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1C, Chairman Parker, District 1A Holmes, District 4A Fuller, 

District 4D Boyd-Simpson 
 

2. Renew United Health Care Insurance with HPL Benefits and absorb the cost 

increase until March 31, 2024 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1C, Chairman Parker, District 4A Fuller, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson 

Page 58



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 04, 2023 

 

Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
 

Page 59



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 04, 2023 at 5:10 PM  
Road Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Reggie Roe, Chairman, Jimmy Holmes, Jeri Burrell, Ernel Jones, Keith Parker 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 5, Chairman Reggie Roe 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 1C Keith Parker 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    ROAD ITEMS 

1. Authorize the President to sign the Change Order No. 1 to include asphalt 
resurfacing on Cody Lane. 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 

Voting Yea: District 5, Chairman Roe, District 1A Holmes, District 4B Burrell, 
District 4C Jones, District 1C Parker 

 

2. Authorize the President to sign Change Order No. 3 for sheet pile headwall on 

Mounce Road (2016 FEMA) 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 
Voting Yea: District 5, Chairman Roe, District 1A Holmes, District 4B Burrell, 

District 4C Jones, District 1C Parker 
 

3. Authorize the Parish Administrator to sign the agreement between owner and 

engineer for professional service on Brazzel Road (Preliminary Design, Final 
Design and Construction layout) 

Page 60



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 04, 2023 

 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 
Voting Yea: District 5, Chairman Roe, District 1A Holmes, District 4B Burrell, 

District 4C Jones, District 1C Parker 
 

4. Authorize compensating Pat Loftus for fence replacement on Powell Road as per 

the servitude agreement 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 

Voting Yea: District 5, Chairman Roe, District 1A Holmes, District 4B Burrell, 
District 4C Jones, District 1C Parker 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

 

Page 61



DeSoto Parish 
Rural Parish - District #7 

Louisiana Enterprise Zones 
2010 

 Place D CT BG Action 

1 
Rev 7/2013 

Parish .......................................  .................. 9501 ..... 3 ......  
Parish .......................................  .................. 9502 ..... 2 ......  
Parish .......................................  .................. 9502 ..... 4 ......  
Parish .......................................  .................. 9503 ..... 2 ......  
Parish .......................................  .................. 9504 ..... 2 ......  
Parish .......................................  .................. 9504 ..... 3 ......  
Parish .......................................  .................. 9505 ..... 2 ......  
Parish .......................................  .................. 9505 ..... 3 ......  
Parish .......................................  .................. 9506 ..... 2 ......  
Parish .......................................  .................. 9506 ..... 3 ......  
Parish .......................................  .................. 9507 ..... 1 ......  
 
 
 
Economic Development Zone (EDZ) 

 ............................................. None ..............  ................... 
 
 
 
2010 Zones ..............................  ..................  ...............11 

†Act 571 of 2013    75,000 or less ............. Not declared 
EDZ .........................................  ..................  .................0 
Total Zones ..............................  ..................  ...............11 
 
 
 
*Indicates the new EZ after the swap. 
 

Page 62



 

    

 

November 15, 2023 via e-mail 

 

 
Mr. Ernel Jones 

Desoto Parish Government 

101 Franklin Street  

Mansfield, LA 71052 

 
RE:       Updated listing of designated Enterprise Zones 

 
Dear Mr. Jones, 

 
The U.S. Census Bureau recently released the 2020 Census apportionment results. Therefore, an update to the 

list of eligible tracts in your jurisdiction for the Enterprise Zone Incentive Program, administered by the 

Louisiana Department of Economic Development (“LED”), is required. 

 
In accordance with La. R.S. 51:1784, LED uses federal census data in qualifying the bottom forty percent of 

block groups in the state as Enterprise Zones, based upon per capita income, unemployment and percentage of 

residents receiving public assistance. 

 
Please find attached your current approved listings and an updated proposed listing for your 

jurisdiction. 

 
In accordance with La. R.S. 51:1785, LED shall designate qualified block groups as Enterprise Zones only 

after receiving notice that the governing authority agrees to participate in the program. 

 
LED therefore requests that you respond by January 10, 2024, stating whether you approve of the updated 

zones. There is no specific form required for a response, however, a sample letter and resolution are attached 

for your convenience. 

 
Unless timely advised to the contrary, the updated Enterprise Zones will be deemed approved by LED 

and submitted to the Board of Commerce and Industry for their consideration at a future public meeting. 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact me at joyce.metoyer@la.gov  or 225.342.0485. 

 

Joyce Metoyer 

Program Administrator, Enterprise Zone Program 

Louisiana Economic Development 
 

 

 

 

 
       

 
 

Page 63

mailto:joyce.metoyer@la.gov


LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE ZONE INCENTIVE 
September 2023 

 
What is the Enterprise Zone Incentive? 
The Enterprise Zone, or EZ program is a jobs incentive program that provides Louisiana income and 
franchise tax credits to a new or existing business located in Louisiana creating permanent net new full- 
time jobs, and hiring at least 50% of those net new jobs from one of four targeted groups. The intent of 
the program is to stimulate employment for residents in depressed areas of the state that are 
designated as enterprise zones by providing tax incentives to a business hiring from these areas. The 
benefit provides the following state incentives: 

 Either a one-time $3,500 or $1,000 tax credit for each net new job created. 

 A rebate of state sales and use taxes paid on qualifying materials, machinery, furniture, and/or 
equipment purchased or a 1.5% refundable investment tax credit on the total capital 
investment, excluding tax exempted items. The rebate shall not exceed $100,000 per net new 
job. 

 
What kinds of businesses qualify for the Enterprise Zone Incentive? 
There are many types of businesses that can qualify for Enterprise Zone, including manufacturing, 
businesses services, healthcare, and distribution centers to name a few. The amount of existing 
employees is a determining factor in qualifying for EZ, as well as location. However, the following 
employers or persons shall not be eligible to participate in the program: 

 Employers engaged in the gaming industry or residential developments 

 Churches 

 Retail employers assigned NAICS Code Sections 44 and 45 

 Employers assigned NAICS Code Sections, 721, 722 and 5613 
 

How has the Enterprise Zone Incentive performed? 
From 2017-2022, there have been: 

 334 EZ Contracts approved in 42 parishes 

 14,321 direct jobs estimated to be or have been created 

 $12 Billion of new capital investment 
 
 

 

 

Page 64



FAQs 
 

Why am I being reached out to about the Enterprise Zone Incentive? 
 LED updates the census tracts that qualify as Enterprise Zones every 10 years, using updated 

federal census data. As a part of this update, local governments are invited to approve the 
Enterprise Zones in their jurisdiction. 

 
How will approving the Enterprise Zones help my Parish? 

 Approving the Enterprise Zones will incentivize companies to hire the citizens of your Parish, 
specifically those that live in an Enterprise Zone. Additionally, companies are incentivized to 
locate within your Enterprise Zones. 

 

If our local government approves these Enterprise Zones, are we giving up any local tax revenue? 

 Not with this vote. As a part of the Enterprise Zone incentive, companies are able to request 
that non-dedicated local sales taxes paid on qualifying expenses be rebated. However, the 
rebate of local sales taxes must be voted on by the local governing authorities for each 
project/contract. That is not within the parameters of the vote to approve updated Enterprise 
Zones. 

 
Have local sales taxes been rebated for the Enterprise Zone Incentive before? 

 Yes, but very few projects request it. Of the 344 Enterprise Zone projects that have appeared 
before the State Board of Commerce and Industry from January 2017 to July 2023, only 10 have 
requested local sales taxes be rebated. This was after acquiring the approval to rebate those 
local sales taxes from the local governing bodies. 

Page 65



RESOLUTION 

 

 
REQUESTING THE DESIGNATION OF CERTAIN CENSUS TRACT BLOCK 

GROUPS ENUMERATED BELOW AS ENTERPRISE ZONES, FOR PARTICIPATION 

IN THE ENTERPRISE ZONE PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY THE LOUISIANA 

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

 
WHEREAS, LA R.S. 51:1784, pertaining to the Enterprise Zone Program, includes a provision that data 

from the most recent federal decennial census shall be applied in determining areas qualified for designation 

as enterprise zones; and 

WHEREAS, the Louisiana Department of Economic Development designates the below enumerated tracts 

as Enterprise Zone eligible based upon the 2020 federal decennial census; and 

WHEREAS, LA R.S.51:1785, pertaining to the Enterprise Zone Program, includes a provision that the 

Louisiana Department of Economic Development shall only designate eligible block groups as Enterprise 

Zone if the local governing authority agree to participate in the Enterprise Zone program; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by [Local governing authority], that: 

Section 1. [Local governing authority] wishes to participate in the Enterprise Zone Program: 

Section 2. [Local governing authority] agrees to assist the Department in evaluating progress made in any 

Enterprise Zone within its jurisdiction. 

Section 3. [Local governing authority] wishes to designate the following as Enterprise Zones: 
 

  

 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if any provision or item of this resolution or the application thereof is 

held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions, items or applications of this resolution which 

can be given effect without the invalid provisions, items or applications and to this end the provisions of 

this resolution are hereby declared severable. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Census 

Tract 

Block 

Group 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

Census 

Tract 

Block 

Group 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

Census 

Tract 

Block 

Group 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

Page 66



 

    

 

 

 

 
 

Enterprise Zone Program Approval Letter 
 

 

 

Date: 

 

 

Local Governing Authority 

Address 

 

 

RE: Updated listing of designated Enterprise Zones 

 

Please accept this letter as ‘s 
Local Governing Authority 

participation interest in the Louisiana Enterprise Zone Act pursuant to Louisiana 

R.S. 51:1781-1791. 

 

In accordance with the requirements of Louisiana Enterprise Zone Program, 
  agrees: 

Local Governing Authority 
 

 

1. To participate in the Enterprise Zone Program. 
 

2. To assist the Department in evaluating progress made in any Enterprise Zone within its 

jurisdiction. 

 
Sincerely, 
Local Governing Authority 

 

 

 

 

Name Title 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

       

 
 

Page 67



Place Census Tract Block Group

 DeSoto Parish 9501.01 2

 DeSoto Parish 9502 2
 DeSoto Parish 9503 2
 DeSoto Parish 9504 1
 DeSoto Parish 9504 2
 DeSoto Parish 9504 3
 DeSoto Parish 9505 2
 DeSoto Parish 9505 3
 DeSoto Parish 9506 1

 DeSoto Parish 9506 2
 DeSoto Parish 9506 3
 DeSoto Parish 9507 1

Total Zones 12

DeSoto Parish

Rural Parish - District #7

Louisiana Enterprise Zones

2020

Page 68



PJ 2

PJ 4

QUAIL
TRL

LEWING
LN

MYRTLE
HILL RD

R
O

SEBU
D

PVT D
R

BB LN

REDBLUFF RD

H
AL

L
R
D

DIXIE SW
IM CLUB RD

M
CC

O
Y  

LN

JESSIE LATIN RD

FULLER LN

C
H

ER
R
I

LN

BROW
N RD

LEWIS LN

BE
R
R

Y
LN

COLLINSWOOD
RD

SC
O

TT D
R

H
O

LL
Y

ST

STACYLN

PA
RISH

 R
D

76
2

PA
R

IS
H

R
D

 7
93

TAYLOR DR

THOMAS RD

SM
IT

H
 R

D

BAKER
R
D

B
U

R
F O

R
D

 R
D

SLEEPYHOLLOW DR

RANCHLAND
DR

AN
N

LN

DOUBLE L

M
AIN

ST

W
E N

D
Y

LN

FARRIS LN

WASHINGTON
AVE

WILLIAMSONRD

WILLIAM
FLAVIS RD

JE
A
N

N
E

LN

D
AL

TO
N

R
D

C
H

U
R

C H
R
D

MIDDLETON
RD

M
CD

AN
IE

L
D

R

LAKERD

PI
N

TO
 L

N

R
AM

BIN
 R

D

H
AL

L
R
D

R
O

SE
M

AR
Y LN

R
ED

ST
R

O
N

G
 R

D

STANLEY RD

LESA LN

RUSSELL
RD

H
O

LD
ER

S 
PL

W
ARDRD

THAMES
LN

PA
RI

SH
 R

D
12

98

GRAND CANE FI
RETOWER RD

PARISH

RD 1318

STONEWALL
FRIERSON RD

H
ALL RD

BRANDING
IRON DR

PEA
R
C
E R

D

CARM
ELITA DR

POWELL RD

STONEWALL PRESTON RD

D
EBRA

D
R

W
AL

LA
CE

 L
AK

E 
RD

BOZMANRD

W
H

IT
AK

ER
LN

JA
N

EA
R

C
IR

HI
L

TO
P 

RD
RE

D
 B

LU
FF

 R
D

G
LE

N
N

 R
D

CUNNINGHAM

PVT DR

ST
AN

FO
R
D

 R
D

VI
NSO

N

DR

BE
N

T
O

AK
 D

R

H
ALL
R
D

O
LD

JEFFER
SO

N
 R

D

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D
PA

R
K
 R

D

GE
O
RG

E 
LN

M
O

SELYRD

J B LN

R
O

BIN
SO

N
 R

D

PI
N

TO
LN

PARISH RD
1358

BE
TH

LE
HE

M R
D

MCCUNE
PVT DR

PRAIRIE LN

M
AR

Y S T

MUSTANG DR

PEARL
ST

HILAIRE
RD

RANCHETTE RD

EA
ST ST

FE
R

G
U

SO
N

 R
D

CONWAYLN

PANTHER DR

JA
C
AR

R
I

LN

PA
R

IS
H

 R
D

13
24

ST
AT

E
RT

 1
75

HOUSTON
LN

A
SCEN

SIO
NST

D
U

N
N

 D
R

HALL 
RD

DU
NC

AN
RD

ST
AT

E 
R
T 

17
5

GRIFFIN
DR

PA
R

IS
H

R
D

 1
22

1

PARISH RD 728

TWIN OAKS RD

N
ESBI TT

R
D

PARISH

RD 752

PA
RI

SH
RD

 1
29

6

PORT
ARTHUR

AVE

M
ALO

N
E R

D

CHARIS DR

LEIGH LN

CURTIS CIR

FI
EL

D
S

RD
K
IN

G
ST

O
N

 R
D

PARISH
RD 1343

BE
R
R

Y
L N

HARPER

PRIVATE DR

PARISH
RD 864

STALLION DR

K
IN

G
F I

SH
ER

TR
L

MID
DLE

TON

RD

H
W

Y 
1 7

1

EVERETT LN

BLO
XOM RD

M
AS

O
N

R
D

PA
R

ISH
R

D
 748

SI
M

P T
O

N
 R

D

FA
M

IL
Y 

LN

ROWE RD

B
 B

 L
N

LOS
ADAIS RD

PA
R

I S
H

R
D

 6
26

JA
N

E
LN

FLY

LOW LN

H
AYES

H
ILL RD

W
ILLIAM

SR
D

M
ILLER
LN

MEADOW DR

SM
ITHRD

CARMELITARD

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

D
R

LE
E  

SM
IT

H
 L

N

THOMAS

RD

PARISHRD 828

SCOTT

SC
R

O
G

G
IN

S
D

R

KELLY
LN

H
W

Y 
17

1

H
AL

LM
AR

K
R
D

RO
W

E
RD

JE
A
N

EA
R

C
IR

N
O

R
M

A
N

 LN

RV
LN

CLINTON DR

GREGG RD

BROKEN
ARROW TRL

BRADSHAW
RD

STONEWALL
FRIERSON RD

G
EO

R
G

E
R
D

DIXIESWIMCLUB RD

PAR
ISH

 R
D

 697

PARK RD

RANDY
LN

RE
BE

L
RD

SAN
D

PIPERLN

CAMP ST

MASON
RD

OLD

MAIN ST

SK
YL

ER
PV

T 
R
D

RICHARDSON

RD

ADAMS RD

BA
TE

S 
RD

ABC
LN

G
R

AH
AM

M
ED

LI
N

 R
D

B
O

YD
 R

D

LO
N

G
 R

D

A
R
AB

IA
N LN

PA
RI

SH
 R

D
75

4

YO
UN

G
 R

D

FRANK BURFORD RD

JEFFER
SO

N

R
D

ALLENDALE LN

R
O

CH
EL

 L
N

MCCOY
DR

FIRE TOWER RD

KEITHVILLE
KINGSTON RD

LAKEVIEW RD

WINDING
PRIVATE DR

W
IL

IE
 X

 R
D

O
LD

 M
ILL RD

D
O

R
ISD

R

JOHN RD

A
TK

IN
S 

L N

C
H

U
CK

S
LN

N
EV

A 
LN

DEMENT LN

M
IS

SI
LE

 B
AS

E 
RD

CASE LN

ST
A N

LE
Y 

R
D

TWIN

OAKS RD

OUTLAWS

RIDING CLUB

O
D

EL
LE

M
IL

LE
R
 H

W
Y

EVELYN DR

PA
R

ISH
R

D
 1289

SCOTTRD

BUCKSKIN DR

JENNIFER DR

M
YR

TL
E

H
IL

L 
R
D

D
AVIS R

D

H
ILL

R
D

N
A N

CY
LN

LOIS LN

PAGE

RD

APPALOOSA DR

LIBRARY
RD

K
AT

H
R

YN
 L

O
O

P

LI
N

W
O

O
D

 E
XN

CIR
 M

 D
R

M
IT

CH
EL

L 
LN

DAVIS
PL

PER
SLEY R

D

LIN
W

O
O

D
 AVE

MOSLEY LN

PI
N

E
G

R
O

V E
 R

D

PA
R

IS
H

 R
D

 6
89

PIN
OAK

FLT RD

LOIS
LN

R
AN

G
ELS

PVT  R
D

PA
LO

M
IN

O
D

R

TIM
BERLIN

E C
IR

H R

DIARY RD

HALL RD

R
O

D
EO

 D
R

C
H

R
IS

 L
N

PA
R

IS
H

R
D

 6
83

SC
AR

LE
TT

 R
D

BETHEL RD

HERVEY

DAIRY RD

PARISH RD 722PA
R

I S
H

 R
D

81
8

PERCHERON DR

ED
G

E W
O

O
D

 D
R

SHANEE PVT DR
DIXIE
SWIM

CLUB RD

CLARKLN

R
D

PA
RI

SHPJ 3

RD
 6

80

D
AV

E 
LN

EAGLE
RD

KINGS
CIR

GLENM
ARTIN RD

G
AR

SE
E

C
IR

BUENA VISTA RD

PUFFIN

ENGLISH RD

K
AY

LA
D

R

FOB
LN

HAZELWOOD RD

CASH

BUTLER RD

PA
R

IS
H

R
D

 6
88

PA
R

I S
H

R
D

 1
28

9

DOUGLASRD

JESIE

LATIN RD

PA
RI

SH
RD

 7
31

JOHN RD

MEM
ORY

LN

PA
R

IS
H

R
D

 1
31

1

PA
RI

SH
RD

 1
31

8

PA
RI

SH
 R

D 7
13

01.01
BG 1

9501.02
     BG 2

9501.03
BG 1

9501.03
BG 2

95
B

9503

9501.01
BG 2

Legend

Streets

River

Railroad

PJ 1A

PJ 1B
PJ 1C

PJ 2

PJ 3

PJ 4A

PJ 4B

PJ 4C

PJ 4D

PJ 5

PJ 6
LA Enterprise
Zone

Census Tract and
& Block Boundary

9506
BG 1

Census Tract Number

Census Block Number NOT TO
SCALE

Part of PJ 4A,
part of PJ 4B,
and part of PJ 3

9501.01 - BG 2

Page 69



D
AIRY LN

W
H

ELESS
R
D

MILL CREEK RD

D
AIRY

LNCADDO

AD
AM

S RD

GIBSON RD

BLUEBERRY TRL

CREEK RD

WINTERST

FM
 31

UNCAS
ST

TAM
M

Y

W
ILIAMS

ST

TH
O

M
AS R

D

S BOGLE RD

G
U

M
 S T

PAR
ISH

R
D

 61

LAKESHORE
DR

HANNA TUCKER RDWINTER ST

MARSHALL RD

WOODSPRINGS

RD

CO RD 465

CAR
O

LIN
A

ST

STATE LINE RD

RUBY
DRY RD

BLUEBERRY TRL

WATERPLANT RD

C
AD

D
O

ST

S 2ND ST

STATE RT 765

JANET LN

JENKINS
RD

HAT

BONNER
RD

ANCHOR
DR

B
O

G
LE

R
D

M
AINST

LU
C
ILLE LN

PAUL RD

HALL RDH
W

Y

84

S 4TH ST

TYLER RD

S 6TH ST

M
AN

N
IN

G
R
D

STATE RT 3015

HUDSON
ST

BERRY RD

PR
ICE

ST

DAVIS RD

O
AKST

FUN
STO

N
 RD

BOSSIER LN

PARISH
RD 616

SH
A
D

O
W

EN
S

R
D

STATERT 5

REGISTER
LOOPSTEPHEN

S RD

FOUR
MILE LOOP

SU
TTO

N
 RD

CO
O

L SPRINGS RD

J D
 RD

D
U

PR
EE R

D

MILL
RD

PARISH
RD 255

FREDERICK
ST

H
O

G
 EYE RD

SO
U

TH
ST

HOY LN

NASH RD

H
EN

H
O

U
SE
D

R

R
D

FINLEY RD

PARK ST

BARN
ES

LN

DEARMAN LN

DAIRY RD

PETTY
R
D

BELLE BOWER RD

D
IC

KSO
N

 LN

CO RD 465

SIM
PSO

N
LN

LUCILLE

LN

CO RD
465

STA
TE RD

PHILMO
LN

HELEN LN

PO
W

ELL

RD

BOGLE RD

B
AR

RY R
D

ODEN
DR

SPEIG
H

TS RD

H
O

R
N

 R
D

H
O

R
N

 R
D

WILLIE
JR RD

PETERS RD

PA
R

ISH
R

D
 2

WIN
PIN

PETTY RD

FRANKDR

ME SMITH RD

G
A
R

R
ETT

PA
R

K RD

EV
AN

G
ELIN

E 

P A
R

IS H
 R

D
 1340

ADAM
S

LN

CASH
 BLACKM

O
N
 RD

BETHEL RD

ROBINSON

RD

TW
O

 M
ILES R

D

RIVER RD

Leg
en

d

Streets

R
iver

R
ailroad

PJ 1A

PJ 1B
PJ 1C

PJ 2

PJ 3

PJ 4A

PJ 4B

PJ 4C

PJ 4D

PJ 5

PJ 6
LA Enterprise
Zone

Census Tract and
&

 Block Boundary

9
5

0
6

B
G

 1
Census Tract N

um
ber

Census Block N
um

ber
N

O
T

 T
O

S
C

A
LE

A
ll w

ith
in P

J 1B
9

5
0

2
 - B

G
 2

Page 70



PARISH

RD 145

H
EN

RY W
ILLIAM

S RD

U
N

IO
N

G
RO

VE RD

G
ARRETT
LN

STATE

RT 483

H
IN

D
S R

D

ST JOSEPH RD

STATE RT 513

STATE

RT 175

PAR
ISH

R
D

 1227

HWY 371

GROVE HILL RD

PH
ILLIPS

CH
A
PLE

CEM
ETERY RD

R
AM

BLIN
 R

D

D
EA

SO
N

 D
R

PA
R

ISH
R

D
 917

PARISH

RD
 385

PA
R
ISH

R
D

 1020

RAMBLIN
RD

TRENTON RD

BCR
 LN

HWY 171
W

 RED
BA

YO
U

 R
D

BRU
M

LEY LN

STATE RT 177

PARISH RD 368

ARR
O

W
 LN

PAR
ISH

 R
D

1384

ALBERT LEWIS

PARISH RD

1030 PAR
ISH

R
D

 481

STATE RT 175

PAR
ISH

RD
 910

ROMBIN RD

HENRY
LN

PARISH

RD 145

H
O

RTO
N RD

W
P A

 R
D

SAIN
T

PAU
L ST

STATE

RT 177

N
EW

 BEN
SO

N
 R

D

STENETRD

ROS
RD

OLD UNION RD

N
ELSO

N
 R

D

REDDIX RD

PAR
ISH

 RD
507

STA
TE R

T 512

PA
TR

ICK
R

D

DANIEL
CRUMP RD

PARISH RD1017

RYANRD

PARISH
RD 415

H
EN

RY LN

PARISH

RD 1067
HIGH LN

MUSTIN RD

PARISH

RD 905

ALL SAINTS RD

H
EN

R
Y R

D

JIM
M

Y

LEE RD

PAULY

PL

PARISH
RD

 388

MAHFOOZLN

GODW
INLOP

DESADIER
RD

OLD
UNION RD

R
ED

D
ICK R

D

ST A
TE  R

T 346

COTON ST

WALKER RD

DESOTO FIRE TOWER

H
U

D
SO

N
 D

A
R
BY  R

D

COTTON
GIN RD

TAYLO
R RD

YOUNG

BLOOD RD

DOUBLE CH RD

G
O

U
D

EAU
R

D

BRID
G

ES

LN
O

B LN

BURKHALTER RD

PA
R

ISH
R

D
 915

HOUSLEY RD

HWY 171

W
ALKER

 RD

JO
HN

SO
N

RD

ALICE
LN

PARISH

RD 906

PARISH RD 16

WILBORN RD

TIM
M

IE LEE RD

H
A
IR

E
H

ILL R
D

PARISHRD 489

BU
R

D
O

N
R

D

RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 19

PARISH
RD 372

ELIJAHLN

BAR
N

ES R
D

LAKE RD

SH
A
M

A
R

 PA
TR

IC
E RD

HAIRE LOOP

BODWEN RD

SAM BOOKER RD

BR
A
N

TLEY R
D

JAC
O

BS
ST

PARISH RD 122

OGLETREE RD

RANCH RD

PARISHRD 487

H
O

O
PE R

L N

PARISHRD 482

BUTLER RD

H
U

D
SO

N
 D

A
R
BY R

D

LB HUNT RD

PH
I LLIPS R

D

SH
A
D

O
I N

LO
O

P

E RED
BAYO

U
 RD

OLD
JEFFERSON RD

ANDERSON LN

H
O

R
TO

N
 R

D

ROSS RD

ROBERTSON RD

RAMRES RD

PARISH

RD 1225

RYAN
RD

LORDRD

PARISH

RD 1055

CO
M

M
ER

CE
ST

FISH
ER

 R
D

N
ELSO

N
 LN

RICHARDSON RD

STATE RT
174

WALLACE RD

H
U

N
TER

LN

WINDY

WOODS LN

PARISH RD
1068

W
ALKER LN

JO
H

N
SO

N
 RD

PARISH
RD

 1078

PARISH RD 145

PARISH
RD 375

PETELAFFITTE RD

M
AXIE

RD

CROSS RD

PARISH
 RD

 322

HOWARD
RD

N
ATIE M

AXIE

H
W

Y
175

STATE RT 483

RISINGSTAR RD

FISHING GROUND RD

PARISH
RD 366

TH
O

M
PSO

N
 R

D
H

U
D

SO
N

D
A
R

BY R
D

MUSTIFUL LN

ADDISON RD

PARISH RD 907

LO
R

D
 R

D

PARISH
RD 320

HENRY RD

PERRY

RD

SAM
 BOOKER RD

ST PETERS RD

EVANS
LN

PARISH RD 421

CRO
SS RD

PAR
ISH

 R
D

 1 060

DAVIS RD

W
ISE R

D

CHAMBERLAIN RD

C
ATU

N
A

R
D

STEN
N

ETT
R

D

PARISH

RD 22

PARISH

RD 492

OXFORD CUTOFF RD

RICHEY
RD

PARISH
RD 491

BO
B W

ILSO
N

 RD

HAIRE RD

N
O

R
W

O
O

D
 R

D

PARISH RD 419

PARISH

RD 24

PASTURE RD

ANTIOCH RD

PA
R
ISH

R
D

 369

STA
TE R

T 177

PARISH
RD 21

STEW
AR

T  R
D

H
O

R
TO

N
 R

D

Leg
en

d

Streets

R
iver

R
ailroad

PJ 1A

PJ 1B
PJ 1C

PJ 2

PJ 3

PJ 4A

PJ 4B

PJ 4C

PJ 4D

PJ 5

PJ 6
LA Enterprise
Zone

Census Tract and
&

 Block Boundary

9
5

0
6

B
G

 1
Census Tract N

um
ber

Census Block N
um

ber
N

O
T

 T
O

S
C

A
L

E

P
art o

f P
J 6 and

a
 sm

a
ll po

rtio
n

o
f P

J 4C

9
507 - B

G
 1

Page 71



9
5

0
6

B
G

 2
HEARD

 RD

M
IXO

N
R
D

PUPPY LN

GRAND CANE LOGANSPORT RD

M
O

D
EL

R
D

DELTON RD

STATE RT 513

SCREAMVILLE RD

JEFFERSON
ST

M
CD

O
N

ALD
LN

PINKNEY DR

3R
D

 ST

FR
AN

KL IN
ST

TURNERROBBINS RD

CH
ARLESRD

BED
SO

LE
LN

PARISH
 RD

 274

EATM
AN

ST

D
EASO

N
 D

R

PAR
ISH

R
D

 917

ROBINSON
RD

STARKS

ST

TRENTON RD

BY PASS RD

EM
S

CIR

BCR
 LN

9TH
ST

HWY 171

CAVALIER
D

R

OXIDATION
RD

SILVER SP

BR
U

M
LEY LN

1ST ST

W
 K

JO
N

 R
D

PEYTO
N

ST

M
AR

G
IE R

D

PHIL DAVIS

ALBERT LEWIS WAY

ELO
ISE

ST

D
EASO

N

PAR
ISH

R
D

 328

ANDYLN

RIVES RD

M
ETC

ALF
R
D

LB BAGLEY RD

KINGS

HW
Y

SLO
AN RD

STATE RT 3015

H
W

Y 84

SUNSET
DR

2ND
ST

RAILROAD

AVE

W MAIN ST

MORNING
GLORY RD

OXFORD
RD

N HILLS DR

JENKINS ST

FOXHILL LN

W
ILD

W
O

O
D

D
R

CIR
D

R
ELLIOT LN

W
O

O
D

S

R
D

CED
AR

H
ILL RD

PINK DAVIS RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 342

ODOM
RD

HW
Y 171

CEMETERY RD

D
AV

ID
SO

N
 R

D

ROBERTS
ST

GINGER

AVE

MARCIA

ST

W
ASHINGTON AVE

MOUNCE RD

FORREST DR

TYLER
ST

FILES RD

SQ
 D

R
 N

W
ASH

IN
G

TO
N

AVE

H
U

SO
NST

TWIN

LAKES RD

THOMAS RD

LAURA
ST

WILLARD
ST

PAR
ISH

 R
D

 1156

ARIEL LN

H
O

PE ST

D
R
AIN

 R
D

SILVERLEAF LN

GEORGIA
ST

COLBERT

LN

EBONY

9
5

0
5

B
G

 3

BLVD

5TH
ST

LOUISE

ST

CORNELL ST

SUDDS
RD

3RD
ST

AND
ERSO

N RD

5TH ST

CREEK
BANK RD

1ST
ST

BLUNT MILL RD

CO
TTO

N
BELT R

D

NORTH

ST

GREENBRIAR

CV

TIM
BER LN

H
O

LLY
ST

CAPER
S R

D

PAR
ISH

R
D

 95

FREEM
AN

 LN

ELAM
ST

PJ ST

1ST ST

FIELD

9
5

0
6

B
G

 3

ST

FOXTROT
DR

RAILROAD

AVEPAR
ISH

R
D

 915

STAGECOACH RD

HUNTER

LN

MAY

TH
O

M
AS LN

CAR
ER

 R
D

CO
O

PER
R
D

JA N
E  ST

9
5

0
5

B
G

 2

PARISH

RD 48

H
O

LLEY
H

I LL D
R

H
W

Y 171

KIM
LN

MARR RD

AM
Y LN

BOOKER LOOP RD

LEE ST

LAKERD

RISH

PARISH RD 16

OLD
MORNING
GLORY RD

PRESTON LN

ZION
HILL RD

STATE

WILSON RD

PO
LK ST

9
5

0
4

B
G

 1

JONES
LOP

LEAH
 LN

PARISH

RD 339

D
O

ED
R

CO
URTNEY

CINST
ACCESS RD

ARMSTRONG
RD

D
IN

KINS
RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 19

FLO
R
EN

CEST

LAKE RD

SH
AM

A
R

 PATR
ICE R

D

FO
R

EST
LN

JAM
ES ST

ANDERSON RD

PARISH
RD

 1178

PARISH
RD 341

ALLEN
CEM

ETER
Y R

D

PAR
ISH

R
D

 343

GEORGE HUNT RD

BROWN
RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 549
JAMES ST

SCREAMVILLE
RD

BUFFALO RD

M
O

U
N

CE R
D

D
EP O

T
R
D

HONEY
DEW HILL

PAR
ISH

RD
 554

W
EBBER RD

W
O

O
D

S
LN

JOHNSON
ST

D
AW

 R
D

W
H

ITE

O
AK D

R

BRU
M

LEY LN

2ND ST

C
LAR

K RD

ROSS LN

PAR
ISH

 R
D

535

HUNTER RD

D
O

N
 LN

M
CG

EE LN

STATE RT 175
MAJOR LN

M
CG

O
V
ER

N
 LN

M
EAD

O
W

LN

BAILEY
LN

PARISH
 RD

 326

ABIN
G

TO
N

R
D

PARISH

RD 304

CHOW
NS DR

PARISH
RD 273

PARISH

RD 49

GILLIAM RD

PAR
ISH

 RD
 81

CARMEL

PARISH
 RD275

ODOM RD

G
R
EN

M
EAD

O
W

 D
RPARISH

RD 552

BIN
N

IN
G

 R
D

AN
D

Y LN

PARISH RD 145

PAR
ISH

R
D

 277

HALL RD

M
ASO

N
 R

D

PARISHRD 1168

PAR
ISH

 R
D

 543
STATE R

T 3015

PARK DR

PARISH RD 1188

RAD
IO

 STATIO
N
 RD

PINK DAVIS RD

PARISH

RD 278

POO
LE RD

ABIN
G

TO
N
 RD

TH
O

M
PSO

N
 R

D

PAR
ISH

 R
D

 542

YOUNGBLOOD RD

H
U

D
SO

N
D

AR
BY  R

D

ADDISON RD

PARISH RD 83

PARISH
RD 1179

ROGER FIELD RD

COX

DAIRY RD

M
ETCALFRD

SUNSET
PRIVATE DR

ABIN
G

TO
N

 R
D

PARISHRD 281

PAR
ISH

R
D

 279

SAMMY RAILEY RD

PEN
N

PRIVITE D
R

W
ISE RD

PARISH

RD 22

OXFORD CUTOFF RD

PAR
IS H

R
D

 18 0

PARISH

RD 24
WALKER RD

HARTS BLUFF RD

CLAUDE DANCE RD

HOWARD RD

ANTIOCH RD

ROGERS RD

PARISH
RD 21

Leg
en

d

Streets

R
iver

R
ailroad

PJ 1A

PJ 1B
PJ 1C

PJ 2

PJ 3

PJ 4A

PJ 4B

PJ 4C

PJ 4D

PJ 5

PJ 6
LA Enterprise
Zone

Census Tract and
&

 Block Boundary

9
5

0
6

B
G

 1
Census Tract N

um
ber

Census Block N
um

ber
N

O
T

 T
O

S
C

A
LE

P
a

rt o
f P

J 4A
,

p
art of P

J 4C
,

a
nd

 a
 sm

all
p

ortio
n

 o
f P

J 4B

9
50

4
 - B

G
 3

P
a

rt o
f P

J 4A
,

p
art of P

J 4B
,

a
n

d p
a

rt of P
J 4D

9
50

4
 - B

G
 2

P
a

rt o
f P

J 4C
a

nd
 p

a
rt of P

J 6

9
50

6
 - B

G
 1

Page 72



9
5

0
6

B
G

 2

P
J 5

P
J 6

P
J 4

C

P
J 4

A

PARISH

RD 145

H
EN

R
Y W

ILLIAM
S RD

H
EARD RD

M
IXO

N
R
D

G
ARRETT
LN

CARTER RD

RED

BLUFF RD

H
W

Y 84

LEW
IS LN

STATE RT 513

I 49
I 49

JEFFERSON
ST

FLY

LOW LN

PINKNEY DR

HWY 371

SMOKY
HILL RD

TAYLO
R
 D

R

STATE RT 510

FR
AN

KLIN
ST

CH
ARLESRD

GROVE HILL RD

G
RA

VEL PO
IN

T R
D

BRAD
SH

AW
 RD

BED
SO

LE
LN

TIM
BER
LN

R
AM

BLIN
 RD

JEW
EL  LN

SMITHWILSON RD

D
EA

SO
N

 D
R

PA
R

ISH
R

D
 917

STARKS

ST

PA
R

ISH

RAMBLIN
RD

B
CR

 L N

POW
ER

PLANT RD

N
ABO

R
T O

N
C
U

TO
FF

W
 R

ED
B

AYO
U

 R
D

BR
U

M
LEY LN

STATE RT 177

FAR
RIS LN

PARISH RD 368

M
O

U
N

T
ZIO

N
 RD

ELO
ISE

ST

PA
R
ISH

R
D

 481
STATE RT 175

ROMBIN RD

HENRY
LN

H
O

RTO
N

 RD

D
EA

SO
N

M
ETC

A
LF

R
D

DEER

PARK DR

N
ERVIS LN

SLO
AN

 RD

ROS
RD

STATEN
Y LN

DEERPARK RD

REDDIX RD

PAR
ISH

 R
D

507

OXFORD
RD

N HILLS DR

JENKINS ST

JACKSON RD

EVA
N

S LO
O

P

A
SS EFF R

D

DANIEL
CRUMP RD

PARISH RD1017

STATE RT 509

FOXHILL LN

W
ILD

W
O

O
D

D
R

N
ER

VIS
LN

SM
ITHPO

RT LAKE RD

MANSON RD

PARISH
RD 415

PEARCE RD

C
IR

D
R

H
EN

RY LN

WHITAKER
LN

JANEAR
CIR

MUNDY RD

D
AV

ID
SO

N
 R

D

ROBERTS
ST

GINGER

AVE

MARCIA

ST

PARADISE LN

W
ASHINGTON AVE

H
EN

R
Y R

D

PO
W

E R
PLA

N
T  R

D

JIM
M

Y

LEE RD

SQ
 D

R
 N

PARISH
RD

 388

ROBINSON RD

H
U

SO
NST

LAURA
ST

DESADIER
RD

WILLARD
ST

MCMELLAN LN

H
O

PE ST

D
R

A
IN

 R
D

SILVERLEAF LN

EAST
ST

GEORGIA
ST

RED LICK RD

STATERT 175

SUNRISE LN

SH
EPPER

D
LN

LOUISE

ST

CORNELL ST

SUDDS
RD

NSION
ST

R
ED

D
ICK R

D

DUNN DR

STA
TE R

T  346

DESOTO FIRE TOWER

AND
ERSO

N
 RD

DESOTO FIRE TOWER

CREEK
BANK RD

STATE RT 175

C
O

TTO
N

B
ELT R

D

H
U

D
SO

N
 D

A
R
B

Y  R
D

SAM
PLE RD

TAYLO
R
 R

D

C
ED

AR

LN

GREENBRIAR

CV

C
APER

S R
D

PA
R

ISH
R

D
 95

FREEM
AN

 LN

PARISH RD
215

ELAM
ST

LACO
UPE RD

PJ ST

1ST ST

DOUBLE CH RD

G
O

U
D

EAU
R
D

FIELD

9
5

0
6

B
G

 3

ST

HUEL JONES RD

CRISSA LN

FOXTROT
DR

R
O

SE N
EATH

 LN

H
W

Y 84

PA
R

ISH
R

D
 915

HOUSLEY RD

MAY DR

HWY 171

C
AR

ER
 R

D

BERRY
LN

JAN
E ST

9
5

0
5

B
G

 2

PARISH

RD 48

H
O

LLEY
H

I LL D
R

KIM

W
ALKER RD

JO
HN

SO
N

RD

MARR RD

A
M

Y LN

ALICE
LN

MURRAY
LN

MILL RD

LAKERD

PARISH RD 16

DOUGLAS RD

FR
IEN

D
SH

IP R
D

STA
TE R

T 522

TIM
M

IE LEE RD

FLY

LO
W

 LN

JE W
E L

LN

PO
LK

 ST
9

5
0

4
B

G
 1

LEAH
 LN

HAYES

HILL RD

D
O

ED
R

MILLER
LN

COURTNEY
CINST

ACCESS RD

M
UN

D
Y RD

D
IN

KINS
RD

LAGARS LN

PARISH
RD 372

ELIJAHLN

FLO
R

E N
CEST

LAKE RD

SH
A
M

AR
 PA

T R
ICE  R

D

CLAYTON
ST

STAFFORD
LN

FO
R

ES T
L N JEANEAR

CIR

MANSON RD

JAM
ES ST

B
R
A

N
TLEY R

D

M
U

RRAY
LN

PARISH RD 122

G
REGG RD

TRIPLE

J LN

A
LLEN

C
EM

ETER
Y R

D

B
R
A

D
SH

A W
R
D

RANCH RD

7 11 RD

STARKEY RD

PA
R

ISH

R
D

 549

PARK RD

BUBBA
HOOK RD

TRUE VINE RD

BUFFALO RD

H
U

D
SO

N
 D

A
R

B
Y R

D

G
EO

R
G

E SM
ALL R

D

A
S SEFF

R
D

D
EN

IC A
LN

BOYD RD

CARROLL RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 554

E RED
BAYO

U RD

BO
N

 CASSE LN

RSON RD

H
O

R
TO

N
 R

D

ROSS RD

RAMRES RD

JOHNSON
ST

D
A
W

 RD

W
H

ITE

O
AK

 D
R

BRU
M

LEY LN

H
O

U
STO

N
 LN

STATE R
T 522

2ND ST

ROSS LN

PAR
ISH

 R
D

535

CUT OFF RD

IVORY LN

PASAD
E N

A
AV E

FRIEN
DSHIP RD

D
O

N
 LN

STATE RT 175
MAJOR LN

M
EA

D
O

W

LN

D
EM

EN
T LN

CHOWNS DR

RICHARDSON RD

ROY

LAFITE

SPR

GEORGE LN

JACOBS RD

PARISH

RD 49

PAR
ISH

 RD
 81

CARMEL
LOOP

H
U

N
T ER

LN

SCO
TT

RD

VALURE DR

CAMP DR

JO
H

N
SO

N
 RD

G
R
EN

M
EA

D
O

W
 D

R

R
ED

O
AK

 D
R

PARISH

RD 552

BRIARWOOD

LN

LA COUPE RD

BIN
N

IN
G

 RD

M
O

SLEY LN

PARISH RD 145

PIN
O

AK
FLT R

D

M
A

SO
N

 R
D

PETELAFFITTE RD

CROSS RD

PARK DR

SAMPLE RD

HOWARD

STATE R
T 3248

WARE RD

N
ATIE M

AXIE

RISINGSTAR RD

FISHING GROUND RD

PARISH
RD 366

STILES RD

HEL RD

TH
O

M
PSO

N
 R

D

C
R
O

W
 LN

PAR
ISH

 R
D

 542

ADDISON RD

CLEO
LN

FREEMAN LN

PARISH RD 83

K
IN

G
S

C
IR

HENRY RD

PERRY

RD

FRONTAGE RD

FRIENDSHIP RD

M
ETCALFRD

SAM
 BOOKER RD

EVANS
LN

DAVIS RD

W
ISE R

D

CHAMBERLAIN RD

LACOUPE RD

PARISH
RD 19

PARISH

RD 22

OXFORD CUTOFF RD

PA
R

ISH
R

D
 1 80

CARTER RD

ASSEFF RD

MILL RD

PARISH

RD 24
ANTIOCH RD

PARISH
RD 21

H
O

R
TO

N
 R

D

9
5

0
3

B
G

 2
9

5
0

4
B

G
 3

9
5

0
6

B
G

 1

Leg
en

d

Streets

R
iver

R
ailroad

PJ 1A

PJ 1B
PJ 1C

PJ 2

PJ 3

PJ 4A

PJ 4B

PJ 4C

PJ 4D

PJ 5

PJ 6
LA Enterprise
Zone

C
ensus Tract and

&
 Block Boundary

9
5

0
6

B
G

 1
C
ensus Tract N

um
ber

C
ensus Block N

um
ber

N
O

T
 T

O
S

C
A

L
E

P
art of P

J 6
, p

art of
P

J 4A
, a pa

rt o
f P

J
4

C
 a

n
d

 a
 sm

a
ll

p
ortion

 o
f P

J 5

9
50

3 - B
G

 2

Page 73



9
5

0
6

B
G

 2

P
J 1

A

P
J 2

P
J 5

P
J 4

B

P
J 6

P
J 1

C

P
J 1

B

P
J 4

C

P
J 4

A

P
J 4

D
PARISH

RD 145

Q
U
A
IL

TRL

CHARLIE JONES RD

H
EN

R
Y W

ILLIAM
S RD

D
AIR

Y LN

LEW
IN

G
LN

H
EARD RD

M
YR

TLE
H

ILL R
D

M
IXO

N
R
D

W
H

ELESS
R
D

DOGWOOD
TRL

PUPPY LN

ROSEBUD

PVT DR

U
NIO

N
G

RO
VE RD

BB
LN

GRAND CANE LOGANSPORT RD

MILL CREEK RD

G
ARR

ETT
LN

STA
TE R

T 175

CARTER RD

RED

BLUFF RD
HALL

RD

STATE

RT 483

MILLS
RD

SMYRNA RD
FISHER LN

DIXIE SWIM CLUB RD

MCCOY LN

H
IN

D
S R

D

D
AIRY

LN

W
O

RTLEY LN

JESSIE LA
TIN

 R
D

ST JOSEPH RD

FU
LLER LN

M
O

D
EL

R
D

CHERRI
LN

H
W

Y 84

BROWN RD

KEATCHIE
RD

LEW
IS LN

SMITH
RD

STATE RT 172

DELTON RD

STATE RT 513

I 49

BERRY
LN

C
O

LLIN
SW

O
O

D
R
D

I 49

SCOTT DR

SCREAMVILLE RD

STATE

RT 175

W
H

ITE
R
D

DENISON

RD

JEFFERSON
ST

HOLLY
ST

W
O

O
D

 SPR
IN

G
S

LO
N

G
STREET RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 1227

CADDOST

STACY

LN

C
O

RD
O

VA R
D

FLY

LOW LN

STA
TE R

T 191

M
CD

O
N

A LD
LN

PARISH RD

762

PINKNEY DR

HWY 371

PARISH
RD 793

AD
AM

S RD

3R
D

 ST

SMOKY
HILL RD

T
AYLO

R
 D

R

STATE RT 510

FR
AN

K LIN
ST

TURNERROBBINS RD

CHARLESRD

GROVE HILL RD

G
R
AV

EL PO
IN

T R
D

T
H

O
M

A
S R

D

BR
AD

SH
A
W

 RD

BED
SO

LE
LN

TIM
BER
LN

PH
ILLIPS

C
H

APLE
C
EM

ETER
Y RD

PARISH
 R

D
 274

GIBSON RD

R
AM

B
LIN

 R
D

JE W
EL  L N

BLUEBERRY TRL

EAT
M

AN

ST

SMITHWILSON RD

D
EA

S O
N

 D
R

PAR
ISH

R
D

 917

PAR
ISH

RD
 385

ROBINSON
RD

SMITH RD

BAKER
RD

BURFORD RD

CRO
SS

CREEK RD

SLEEPY
H

O
LLO

W
 D

R

LITLETON

RD

R
AN

CH
LAN

D
D

R

STARKS

ST

PAR
IS H

R
D

 1 020

RAMBLIN
RD

WINTERST

TRENTON RD

BY PASS RD

FM
 31

EM
S

CIR

B
CR

 LN

9TH
ST

UNCAS
ST

TAM
M

Y

D
R

HWY 171

POW
ER

PLANT RD

W
ILIAMS

ST

W
AR

D
PALM

ER
 R

D

W
A TE R

P LAN
T

R
D

PH
ILLIPS R

D

ANN
LN

C
AV

ALIER
D

R

OXIDATION
RD

N
ABO

R
TO

N
C
U

T
O

FF

D
O

U
BLE L

SILVER SPUR LN

WILLIAMS

RD

W
 R

ED
B
AYO

U
 RD

MAIN

ST

B
RU

M
LEY

 LN

STATE RT 177

1ST ST

W
 K

JO
N

 R
D

WENDY
LN

FAR
R
IS LN

W
ASH

IN
G

TO
N

AVE

PEYTO
N

ST

PARISH RD 368

A
RR

O
W

 LN

PAR
ISH

 R
D

1384

W
ILLIAM

SO
N

R
D

T
H

O
M

A
S R

D

M
A R

G
I E RD

W
ILLIAM

FLA
VIS R

D

JEANNE
LN

S DAY RD

M
O

U
N
T

ZIO
N

 RD

DALTON
RD

PHIL DAVIS

H
U
N

TERRD

ALBERT LEWIS WAY

PARISH RD

1030

CHURCH
RD

ELO
ISE

ST

S BOGLE RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 481

STATE RT 175

G
UM

 S T

PAR
ISH

R
D

 910

PAR ISH

R
D

 61

LAKESHORE
DR

ROMBIN RD

HENRY
LN

PARISH

RD 145

M
IDDLETON
RD

STATE RT 763

HANNA TUCKER RDWINTER ST

BLUN
T RD

GAMBLE RD

MARSHALL RD

MCDANIELDR

H
O

RTO
N
 RD

HYNES LN

FRIENDSHIP RD

D
E A

SO
N

PAR
ISH

R
D

 328

WOODSPRINGS

RD

LAKE
RD

PINTO LN

RAMBIN RD

W
PA

 R
D

ANDYLN

HALL
RD

RIVES RD

M
ET

CALF
R
D

ROSEMARY
LN

DEER

PARK DR

CO RD 465

COBB RD

RED
STRONG RD

CARO
LINA

ST

LB BAGLEY RD

STATE LINE RD

RUBY
DRY RD

BLUEBERRY TRL

H
A TC

H
ER

LN

STAN
LEY

 RD

LESA LN

R
U
SSELL

R
D

KINGS

HW
Y

D
EPO

T RD

SAIN
T

PAU
L ST

N
ER

VIS LN

HOLDERS PL

STATE

RT 177

N
EW

 BEN
SO

N
 R

D

STENETRD

SLO
AN RD

STATE R
T 3015

WATERPLANT RD

H
W

Y 84

ROS
RD

STATE RT 481

STATEN
Y
 LN

OLD UNION RD

C
AD

D
O

ST

S 2ND ST

SUNSET
DR

STAT
E R

T 3015

2ND
ST

BETHEL RD

WARD
RD

BOBCATLN

T
H

A
M

ES
L N

RAILRO
AD

AVE
HUNTER RD

W MAIN ST

H
AM

BY
R
D

HASSEL RD

B
R
O

W
N

 R
D

N
ELSO

N
 R

D

PARISH RD1298

DEERPARK RD

REDDIX RD

MORNING
GLORY RD

PAR
ISH

 R
D

507

OXFORD
RD

G
RAND

 CAN
E FIRETO

W
ER RD

STA
TE R

T 512

OAKTRE
CIR

N HILLS DR

DUCK LN

JENKINS ST

JACKSON RD

EVAN
S LO

O
P

PATR
ICK

R
D

A
SS EFF RD

DANIEL
CRUMP RD

STATE RT 765

PARISH RD1017

STATE RT 509

FOXHILL LN

W
ILD

W
O

O
D

D
R

N
ER

VIS
LN

SM
ITHPO

RT LAKE RD

MANSON RD

PARISH

R
D 1318

JANET LN

RYANRD

STO
N

E W
ALL

FR
IER

S O
N

 R
D

HALL RDB
R
AN

D
IN

G
IR

O
N

 D
R

PARISH
RD 415

JENKINS
RD

PEARCE RD

C
I R

D
R

T
AYLO

R
R
D

CARMELITA DR

ELLIO
T LN

PARISHRD 250

W
O

O
D
S

R
D

PO
W

EL L R
D

STO
N

EW
ALL PR

E STO
N
 R

D

C
ED

AR

H
ILL RD

PARISH RD
350

PINK DAVIS RD

DEBRA

DR

WALLACE LAKE RD

B
O

ZM
AN

R
D

PAR
ISH

R
D
 342

NATURAL

GAS RD

ODOM
RD

HATCHER
LN

H
ENRY LN

WATER
PLANT RD

WHITAKER
LN

JANEAR
CIR

HILTOP RD

HW
Y 171

PARISH RD

1112

MUNDY RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 1 048

CEMETERY RD

D
AVID

SO
N

 R
D

RED BLUFF RD

GLENN RD

ROBERTS
ST

STAT
E R

T 5

GINGER

AVE

PARISH

RD 1067

CUNNINGHAM

PVT DR

HIGH LN

PALM
ER

 R
D

BOYD RD

H
AM

ILTO
N
 RD

MUSTIN RD

LA TAMES

CIR

PARISH

RD 905

STANFORD RD

ALL SAINTS RD

BONNER
RD

MARCIA

ST

PARADISE LN

PARISH RD
234

PO
W

ELL R
D

W
ASHINGTON AVE

H
EN

R
Y R

D

VINSON

DR

BENTOAK DR

HALL
RD

PO
W

ER
PLAN

T R
D

ANCHOR
DR

MOUNCE RD

FIRE LN
 R

D

JIM
M
Y

LEE RD

OLD

JEFFERSON RD

FORREST DR

TYLER
ST

WOODLAND
PARK RD

PARISH RD
668

GEORGE LN

FILES RD

W
ODSPRINGS RD

THIGPEN RD

MOSELY
RD

J B LN

PIER
C
E R

D

SQ
 D

R
 N

GLAZE RD

PAULY

PL

PARISH
RD

 388

W
ASH

IN
G

TO
N

A
VE

PARISH
RD 1368

ROBINSON RD

PAR
I SH

LI N
E  R

D

PINTO
LN

STATE RT 169

H
U
SO

NST

MAHFOOZLN

B
O

G
LE

R
D

PAR
ISH

 R
D

135 8

HARTS RD

M
AINST

BETHLEHEM RD

M
CCUNE

PVT DR

TW
IN

LAKES RD

GODW
INLOP

LU
C
ILLE LN

B
O

SS
R
D

THOMAS RD

H
O

LM
E S R

D

LAURA
ST

PARISH

RD 638

PAUL RD

HALL RD

DESADIER
RD

PRAIR
I E LN

D
U
STY

TR
L

H
W

Y

84

WILLARD
ST

FOSHEE RD

MCMELLAN LN

MARY ST

M
U
ST

AN
G

 D
R

PEAR
LST

PAR
ISH

 RD
 1156

H
IL A

IR
E

R
D

ARIEL LN

H
O

PE ST

S 4TH ST

R
AN

CH
ETTE R

D

D
RAIN

 R
D

SILVERLEAF LN

TYLER RD

EAST
ST

FERGUSON RD

GEORGIA
ST

OLD
UNION RD

CON
W

AY
LN

COLBERT

LN

PAN
T
H

ER
 D

R

JACARRI
LN

EBONY

9
5

0
5

B
G

 3

BLVD

5TH
ST

PARISH RD
1324

RED LICK RD

STATERT 175

SUNRISE LN

SH
EPPER

D
LN

LOUISE

ST

H
O

U
STO

N
LN

CORNELL ST

SUDDS
RD

3RD
ST

ASCENSION
ST

R
ED

D
ICK

 R
D

DUNN DR

S 6TH ST

STA
TE  R

T 34 6

M
AN

N
IN

G
R
D

COTON ST

WALKER RD

STATE RT 3015

H
ALL RD

M
URPHREY
RD

B
EN

N
ETTE

LN

DESOTO FIRE TOWER

AND
ERSO

N
 RD

HUDSON
ST

5TH ST

DESOTO FIRE TOWER

B
ER

RY RD

CREEK
BANK RD

DUNCANRD

STATE RT 175
1ST
ST

BLUNT MILL RD

C
O

TTO
N

BELT RD

NORTH

ST
H

UD
SO

N
 D

AR
BY  R

D

ROBERTS RD

GRIFFIN
DR

PARISH
RD 1221

PARISH
 RD

 728

COTTON
GIN RD

SAM
PLE RD

T
AYLO

R R
D

T
W

IN
 O

A
KS R

D

C
ED

AR

LN

INTERNATIONAL FIRE LN RD

PRICE
ST

TAYLOR

RD

FISH
ER

R
D

GREENBRIAR

CV

DAVIS RD

TIM
BER LN

NESBITT
RD

H
O

LLY
ST

WARREN
PL

C
APER

S R
DPAR

ISH
R

D
 95

BAGLEY RD

PAR
ISH

RD
 752

FR
EEM

AN
 LN

PARISH RD
215

PARISH
RD 1296

PO
R
T

A
R
T
H
U
R

A
VE

ELAM
ST

PARISH
RD 1042

YOUNG

BLOOD RD

PARISH

RD 317

LACO
UPE RD

PJ ST

1ST ST

BRYANT RD

DOUBLE CH RD

O
AKST

G
O

U
D

EAU
R
D

FIELD

9
5

0
6

B
G

 3

ST

HUEL JONES RD

FUNSTO
N

 RD

FISH
ER

D
A V

IS R
D

CRISSA LN

FOXTRO
T

DR

KEATCH
IE RD

BR
ID

G
ES

LN
O

B LN

BOSSIER LN

MALONE RD

R
O

SE N
EATH

 LN

M
O

R
RIS LN

BURKHALTER RD

PARISH
RD 616

C
H

A
R
I S D

R

H
W

Y 84

O
LD

CHU
RCH RD

RAILROAD

AVEPAR
ISH

R
D

 915

LEIG
H

 LN

C
U
R

TIS CIR

FIELDSRD

SH
A
D

O
W

EN
S

R
D

MURPHY RD

STAGECOACH RD

KALM
BACH

 RD

HUNTER

LN

PARISH
RD 1049

HOUSLEY RD

T
YLER

 R
D

KINGSTON RD

MAY DR

T
H

O
M

A
S LN

HWY 171

PAR
IS H

R
D

 13 43

STATERT 5

C
AR

ER
 R

D

C
O

O
PE R

R
D

BERRY
LN

HARPER

PRIVATE DR

PAR
I SH

R
D

 864

JAN
E S T

9
5

0
5

B
G

 2

PARISH

RD 48

H
O

LLEY
H

I LL D
R

H
W

Y 171

KIM
LN

REGISTER
LOOP

W
ALKER

 RD

STALLI O
N

 D
R

JO
HNSO

N
RD

KINGFISHER
TRL

PARISH
RD 650

STEPH
EN

S RD

M
IDDLETON

RD

SUNSET LN

M
ARR RD

HWY 171

A
M

Y LN

ALICE
LN

EVERETT LN

BOOKER LOOP RD

BLOXOM
 RD

MURRAY
LN

MILL RD

FOUR
MILE LOOP

C
LA

U
D

E

H
AM

ILTO
N
 R

D

LEE ST

LAKERD

SU
TTO

N
 R

D

PARISH
RD 302

CO
O
L SPRIN

GS RD

GANNONHILL RD

RED

FOX DR

PARISH

RD 906

PARISH RD 16

J D
 RD

MASON
RD

PARISH
RD 748

OLD
MORNING
GLORY RD

W
O

RTLEY LN

SIMPTON RD

DOUGLAS RD

FR
IEN

D
SH

IP R
D

PRESTON LN

FAMILY LN

W
ILLIE

F G
LA

ZE

R
O

W
E R

D

ENGLISH

RD

D
O

G
W

O
O

D

TRL

B B LN

LO
S

AD
AIS RD

PARISH
RD 626

ZION
HILL RD

JANE
LN

SIMPSON
RD

WILBORN RD

STA
TE R

T 522

TIM
M

IE LEE RD

WILSON RD

FLY

LO
W

 LN

JEW
EL

LN

PARISH RD
325

D
U
PR

EE R
D

PO
LK

 ST
9

5
0

4
B

G
 1

JONES
LOP

LEAH
 LN

H
AIR

E
H

ILL R
D

HAYES

HILL RD

WILLIAMS
RD

PARISHRD 489

PARISH

RD 339

MILL
RD

D
O

ED
R

MILLER
LN

M
EA

D
O

W
 D

R

SMITH

RD

PARISH
RD 255

CARM
ELITA
RD

COURTNEY
CINST

ACCESS RD

PARISHRD 653

FREDERICK
ST

WESTWOOD
DR

LEE SMITH LN

ARMSTRONG
RD

M
UN

D
Y RD

THO
M

AS

RD

PARISH
R
D 828

B
U
R
D

O
N

R
D

D
INKIN

S
RD

PARISH RD 310

W
IL SO

N

LN

SCO
TT

SCROGGINS
DR

KELLY
LNPAR

ISH

R
D

 19

KB DAIRY RD

LAGARS LN

PARISH
RD 372

HWY 171

HALLMARK
RD

ELIJAHLN

FLO
R
E N

CEST

M
CCANN
RD

B
AR

N
ES R

D

LAKE RD

SH
A
M

A
R
 PA

T R
ICE R

D

ROWERD

HARPER
LN

CLAYTON
ST

JONES RD

HAIRE LOOP

STAFFORD
LN

FO
R

ES T
LN

BODWEN RD

JEANEAR
CIR

SAM BOOKER RD

STR
AU

S R
D

MANSON RD

NORMAN LN

JAM
ES ST

W
ILLIAM

S R
D

B
R
AN

TLEY R
D

ANDERSON RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 1178

M
URRAY

LN

PARISH

RD 353
FAREM

AN

RD

H
O
G
 EYE RD

RVLN

C
LIN

T
O

N
 D

R

JA C
O

BS
ST

PARISH RD 122

PARISH
RD 341

G
REGG RD

OMEGA LN

D
AIR

Y R
D

OGLETREE RD

C
O

TT O
N

H
ALL  LN

ANDERSON

RD

TRIPLE

J LN

ED
S

R
D

MAYS
DR

A
LLEN

C
EM

ET
ER

Y R
D

B
R
O

KEN
A
R
R
O

W
 TRL

PAR
ISH

R
D
 343

B
R
A
D

SH
AW

R
D

ST O
N

E W
ALL

FR
IER

S O
N

 R
D

O
IL  FIELD

 R
D

RANCH RD

PARISHRD 487

PARISH

RD 663

GEORGE HUNT RD

7 11 RD

BROWN
RD

GEORGE
RD

SO
U

TH
ST

D
IXIE

SW
IM

CLUB RD

STARKEY RD

C
O

KER
W

O
R
SH

AM
 R

D

PA R
IS H

R
D

 54 9

PARISH RD 697

HOY LN

PARK RD

NASH RD

BUBBA
HOOK RD

PARISH

RD 1054

TRUE VINE RD

BARBER CEMETERY RD

MAPLE
DR

O
IL FIELD

 R
D

JAMES ST

PAR
ISH

 R
D

1105

H
EN

H
O

U
SE
D

R

H
O

O
P ER

LN

PARISHRD 482

R
AN

D
Y

LN

V
AN

CE

SCREAMVILLE
RD

BUFFALO RD

BUTLER RD

D
EA

N
S

R
D

REBEL
RD

M
O

U
N

C
E R

D

D
EPO

T
R
D

SANDPIPER
LN

H
UD

SO
N

 D
AR

BY R
D

FINLEY RD

J ALEX A
N

D
ER

 RD

C
AM

P  ST

PARK ST

M
AS O

N
R
D

B
AR

N
ES

LN

MCMILLON
RD

DEARMAN LN

DAIRY RD

G
EO

R
G

E SM
A
LL R

D

LB HUNT RD

PH
ILLIPS  R

D

W
ILDW

OD
DR

A
SSEFF

R
D

O
LD

M
AIN

 ST

SKYLER
PVT RD

R
ICH

AR
D

SO
N

R
D

A
D

A
M

S R
D

D
EN

ICA
LN

BATES RD

PARISH
RD 635

A
BC

LN

HONEY
DEW HILL

SH
AD

O
IN

LO
O

P

GRAHAM
MEDLIN RD

BOYD RD

LONG RD

CARROLL RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 554

W
EBBER RD

E R
ED

BAYO
U RD

M
Y ER

S L N

ARABIAN
LN

HOWARD

LN

CEMETERY RD

PETTY
R
D

PARISH RD754

YOUNG RD

BO
N

 CASSE LN

OLD
JEFFERSON RD

FR
AN

K B
U
R
FO

R
D

 R
D

ANDERSON LN

H
O

R
TO

N
 R

D

ROSS RD

C
IR D

R

JEFFERSON

RD

ALLEN
DALE LN

ROCHEL LN

STA
TE R

T 539

LUCKY LN

W
O

O
D

S
LN

ROBERTSON RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 345

RAMRES RD

JOHNSON
ST

D
AW

 R
D

W
H
ITE

O
AK  D

R

PA R
ISH

R
D

 355

M
CCO

Y
D

R

FLO
W

ER
H

ILL R
D

BR
UM

LEY
 LN

FIR
E TO

W
ER

 R
D

KEITH
VILLE

KIN
GSTO

N
 RD

H
O

U
ST

O
N

 LN

WINDHAM RD

PARISH

RD 1225

LAK
EV

IEW
 R

D

PARISH
RD 307

SAYERS LN

STATE R
T 522

2ND ST

C
LAR

K R
D

C
IR

D
R

ROSS LN

PAR
ISH

 R D
53 5

W
IN

D
IN

G
PRIV

ATE D
R

PAR
ISH

R
D

 308

CUT OFF RD

W
ILIE X RD

OLD MILL RD

IVORY LN

PA
S A

D
EN

A
A
VE

BELLE BOWER RD

FRIEN
DSH

IP RD

WILLOW LN

PAR
KE R

 LN

RYAN
RD

HUNTER RD

D
ICK

SO
N

 LN

D
O

N
 LN

DORIS
DR

CO RD 465
JO

H
N

 R
D

W
ATER

PLANT RD

M
CG

EE LN

LORDRD

ATKINS LN

STATE RT 175
MAJOR LN

PARISH RD 647

STAN
LEY

C
H

U
R
C
H

 R
D

V
AN

CE D
R

CHUCKS
LN

SIM
PSO

N
LN

J O
H

N
S T

O
N

 LN

PEN
N

O
CK

AVE

HUNTER RD

PARISH

RD 1055

M
CG

O
VER

N
 LN

LUCILLE

LN

NEVA LN

CO RD
465

C
O

M
M

ER
CE
ST

M
EA

D
O

W
LN

ANDERSON
RD

BAILEY
LN

D
EM

EN
T LN

STA
TE RD

PARISH
 RD 326

WHITED LN

MISSILE BASE RD

CASE LN

A
BIN

G
TO

N
R
D

PHILMO
LN

PARISH

RD 304

FISH
ER

 RD

TAYLOR DR

N
ELSO

N
 LN

STANLEY RD

H
ELEN LN

CHOW
NS DR

T
W

IN
O

AKS  R
D

RICHARDSON RD

O
UTLAW

S

RID
IN

G CLUB

ROY

LAFITE

SPR

ODELLE
MILLER HWY

J C
PVT R

D

PARISH
RD 273

JESSE W
YA

TT  RD

VIRG
INIARD

PO
W

ELL

R
D

FUN
NY

FAR
M

 RD

STATE RT
174

EVELYN
 D

R

WALLACE RD

H
ARRIS

RD

W
H

IT
TEN

 R
D

JO
N
ES R

D

BOGLE RD

GEORGE LN

PARISH
RD 1289

JACO
BS RD

PARISH

RD 49

LO
W

REY

R
D

BAGLEY RD

GILLIAM RD

PAR
ISH

 R
D
 81

CARMEL
LOOP

B
AR

R
Y R

D

H
U
N

TER
LN

ODEN
DR

SPEIG
H

TS RD

SCO
TT

RD

OILFIELDRD

B
U
C
KSKIN

 D
R

JEN
N
IFER

 D
R

PAR
ISH

 RD275

VALURE DR

MYRTLE
HILL RD

DAVIS RD

HILL
RD

CAMP DR

COW
DIN DR

WINDY

WOODS LN

H
O

R
N

 R
D

H
O

R
N

 R
D

NANCY
LN

PARISH RD
1068

ALLAIN LN

ODOM RD

W
ALKER LN

LO
IS LN

PARISH

RD 1053

PAG
E

RD

JO
H
N

SO
N
 RD

A
PPALO

O
SA D

R

LIBR
AR

Y
R
D

G
R
EN

M
EA

D
O

W
 D

R

DEPOT
RD

KATHRYN LOOP

PAR
ISH

R
D 1078

O
ILFI ELDR

D

R
ED

O
AK D

R

LINWOOD EXN

CIR M DR

PARISH

RD 552

BRIARWOOD

LN

LA COUPE RD

STATE RT 789

MITCHELL LN

D
AV

IS
PL

PERSLEY RD

LINWOOD AVE

B
IN

N
IN

G
 RD

A
N

D
Y LN

M
O

SLEY LN

PARISH RD 145

PAR
ISH

R
D

 277

PARISH
RD 375

PINE
GROVE RD

PARISH RD 689

PIN
O

AK
F LT  R

D

HALL RD

M
ASO

N
 R

D

PETELAFFITTE RD

MARIAN LN

M
AXIE

RD

LO
IS

LN

CROSS RD

PARISHRD 1168

PAR
ISH

R
D
 306

PARISH
RD 1048

RANGELS
PVT RD

PALOMINODR

WILLIE
JR RD

PAR
ISH

 R
D

 543

TIM
BERLIN

E CIR

STATE R
T 3015

H
 R

D
IAR

Y  R
D

H
ALL RD

GAMBLE RD

PARISH RD
 322

PARK DR

SAMPLE RD

CLOVER
LEAF DR

PARISH RD 1188

W
HITE SPRINGS RD

PETERS RD

HOWARD
RD

STAT
E R

T 3248

WARE RD

RODEO DR

PARISH RD

1044

N
ATIE M

AXIE

STAHLLN

H
W

Y
175

BLOUNT RD

W
ILLIE G

LAZE R
D

STATE RT 483

PAR
ISH

R
D

 2

WINDY
PINES

PETT
Y RD

RISINGSTAR RD

PARISH RD 677

CHRIS LN

PARISH
RD 683

R
AD

IO
 STATIO

N
 RD

PINK DAVIS RD

FISHING GROUND RD

FRANKDR

ME SMITH RD

PARISH
RD 366

PARISH
RD

 313

STILES RD

SCARLETT RD

T
R
AN

 R
D

GRAPEVINE AVE

BETHEL RD

PARISH
RD 278

G
AR

R
ETT

PAR
K
 R

D

H
ER

VEY

D
AI R

Y R
D

PO
O
LE RD

ABIN
G
TO

N
 RD

EVA
N

G
EL IN

E LN

PARISH RD 722

PARISH RD
818

FO
STER

 R
D

PER
CH

ER
O

N
 D

R

T
H

O
M

PSO
N

 R
D

EDGEWOOD DR

C
R
O

W
 LN

WHELESS
RD

PARISH
 R

D
 542

PAR
ISH

 R
D

 13 40

YOUNGBLOOD RD

H
UD

SO
N

D
A R

B
Y R

D

SH
A
N

EE PVT D
R

D
IX

IE
SW

IM
C
LU

B
 R

D

MUSTIFUL LN

ADDISON RD

ADAM
S

LN

SH
O

W
S

RD

CLARK
LN

PARISH RD 907

CASH
 BLACKM

O
N
 RD

LAR
R
Y LN

LO
R
D

 R
D

PARISH
RD 320

N
ED

R
ACT

UTZ
RD

PARISH

P
J 3

RD 680

DAVE LN

CLEO
LN

FREEMAN LN

PARISH RD 83

PARISH
RD 1179

EAG
LE

R
D

K
IN

G
S

C
IR

HASEL
RD

GLEN

MARTIN RD

HENRY RD

PERRY

RD

LEW
IS

RD

ROGER FIELD RD

GARSEE
CIR

COX

DAIRY RD

FRONTAGE RD

B
UEN

A
 V

ISTA RD

FRIENDSHIP RD

CHURCH RD

M
ET

CALFRD

SUNSET
PRIVATE DR

PARISH
 RD

 662

A
BIN

G
T
O

N
 R

D

PU
FFIN

SAM
 BOO

KER RD

ST PETERS RD

EVANS
LN

EN
G

LISH
 RD

PARISH RD 421

PARISHRD 281

KAYLA
DR

CRO
SS RD

PAR
ISH

R
D
 279

PAR
I SH

 R
D

 1060

PAR
ISH

R
D

 311

FO
B

LN

GOOD TIMES LN

LO
N

D
O

N
 LN

H
AZELW

O
O

D
 R

D

DAVIS RD

BETHEL RD

C
ASH

B
UT

LER
 RD

SAMMY RAILEY RD

PEN
N

PR
IVITE D

R

ROBINSON

RD

W
ISE R

D

CHAMBERLAIN RD

C
A
T
U
N

A
R
D

PARISH
RD 688

STEN
N

E TT
R
D

LACOUPE RD

PARISH
RD 1289

PARISH
RD 19

PARISH

RD 22

D
O

U
G
LAS

RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 1043

JESIE

LATIN RD

PARISH

RD 492

OXFORD CUTOFF RD

PA R
ISH

R
D

 180

RICHEY
RD

N
UBIN

 R
ID

G
E R

D

ISRAELITE RD

CARTER RD

ASSEFF RD

PARISH
RD 491

BO
B W

ILSO
N
 RD

PARISHRD 731

HAIRE RD

N
O

R
W

O
O

D
 R

D

PARISH RD 303

MILL RD

PARISH RD 419

K
EA

T
CH

IE
SPU

R
 R

D

O
AK GRO

VE RD

PARISH

RD 24

WALKER RD

HARTS BLUFF RD

W
O

O
D

 SPR
IN

G
S R

D

PASTURE RD

LU
LA

 L N

J O
H

N
 R

D

M
EM

ORY

LN

PARISH
RD 1311

CLAUDE DANCE RD

HOWARD RD

PO
AG

 R
D

ANTIOCH RD

PAR
ISH

R
D

 369

ROGERS RD

STA
TE R

T  177

T
W

O
 M

ILES R
D

PARISH
RD 1318

PARISH
RD 21

STEW
AR

T
 R

D

MAGNOLIA AVE

BATTS RD

PARISH RD 713

H
O

R
TO

N
 R

D

RIVER RD

PARISH RD 315

D
eS

o
to

 P
arish

 P
o

lice Ju
ry

P
lan

 H
 (R

evised
)

Leg
en

d

Streets

R
iver

R
ailroad

PJ 1A

PJ 1B
PJ 1C

PJ 2

PJ 3

PJ 4A

PJ 4B

PJ 4C

PJ 4D

PJ 5

PJ 6
9

5
0

2
B

G
 1

9
5

0
2

B
G

 2

9
5

0
2

B
G

 3

9
5

0
2

B
G

 5

9
5

0
2

B
G

 4

9
5

0
1

.0
1

B
G

 1

9
5

0
1

.0
2

     B
G

 2

9
5

0
1

.0
3

B
G

 1
9

5
0

1
.0

3
B

G
 2

9
5

0
7

B
G

 3

9
5

0
7

B
G

 2

9
5

0
5

B
G

 1

9
5

0
7

B
G

 1

9
5

0
3

B
G

 2

9
5

0
1

.0
2

B
G

 1

9
5

0
3

B
G

 1

 9
5

0
4

B
G

 2

9
5

0
4

B
G

 3

9
5

0
1

.0
1

B
G

 2

9
5

0
6

B
G

 1

LA Enterprise
Zone

C
ensus Tract and

&
 Block Boundary

9
5

0
6

B
G

 1
C
ensus Tract N

um
ber

C
ensus Block N

um
ber

N
O

T
 T

O
S

C
A

LE

Page 74



M
O

D
EL

R
D

JEFFERSON
ST

FR
AN

KLIN
ST

CH
ARLESRD

BED
SO

LE
LN

D
EASO

N
 D

R

STARKS

ST

EM
S

CIR

9TH
ST

CAVALIER
D

R

BR
U

M
LEY LN

ALBERT LEWIS WAY

ELO
ISE

ST

D
EASO

N
M

ETCALF
R
D

KINGS

HW
Y

SUNSET
DR

RAILROAD

AVE

OXFORD
RD

N HILLS DR

JENKINS ST

FOXHILL LN

W
ILD

W
O

O
D

D
R

CIR
D

R
ELLIOT LN

W
O

O
D

S

R
D HW

Y 171

ROBERTS
ST

GINGER

AVE

MARCIA

ST

W
ASHINGTON AVE

TYLER
ST

SQ
 D

R
 N

W
ASH

IN
G

TO
N

AVE

H
U

SO
NST

LAURA
ST

WILLARD
ST

ARIEL LN

H
O

PE ST

GEORGIA
ST

COLBERT

LN

EBONY
BLVD

5TH
ST

LOUISE

ST

CORNELL ST

3RD
ST

AND
ERSO

N
 RD

CREEK
BANK RD

ELAM
ST

FIELD
ST

RAILROAD

AVE

CO
O

PER
R
D

JAN
E ST

PARISH

RD 48

KIM
LN

MARR RD

LEE ST

LAKERD

PO
LK ST

ARMSTRONG
RD

FLO
R

EN
CEST

FO
R

EST
LN

PARISH
RD 341

BROWN
RD

D
EPO

T
R
D

JOHNSON
ST

BRU
M

LEY LN

2ND ST

M
EAD

O
W

LN

PARISH

RD 49

PARISH
 RD

 81

PARISH

RD 552
BIN

N
IN

G
 R

D

PARK DR

ADDISON RD

PARISH RD 83

M
ETCALFRD

OXFORD CUTOFF RD

Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A Resolution Adopting an Operating Budget of 

Revenues and Expenditures for the Fiscal Year 

Beginning January 1, 2024, and Ending December 31, 2024 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE POLICE JURY OF DESOTO PARISH, convened in 

special session, that: 

 

SECTION 1: The attached detailed estimate of Revenues for the fiscal year 

beginning January 1, 2024, and ending December 31, 2024, be and the same is 

hereby adopted to serve as an Operating Budget of Revenues for the Jury, during 

the same period.  

 

SECTION 2: The attached estimates of Expenditures by departments for the fiscal 

year beginning January 1, 2024, and ending December 31, 2024, be and the same 

is hereby adopted to serve as a budget of Expenditures for the Jury during the said 

period, allowing the Parish Treasurer to disburse funds as budgeted. 

 

SECTION 3: The adoption of this Budget and of Expenditures be and the same is 

hereby declared to operate as appropriation of the amount therein set forth within 

the terms of the budget classifications. 

 

SECTION 4: Amounts are available for expenditures only to the extent included 

within the 2024 budget. 

 

SECTION 5: The Parish Administrator may authorize transfers between line items 

of expenditures within a program (function) or department, provided that such 

transfers shall not exceed 10% of the total departmental/ program budget. All other 

budget adjustments must be approved by the jury as a whole. 

 

MOTION TO ADOPT the above Resolution was made by _________, seconded 

by____________________. Motion carried. 

 

WHEREUPON the Resolution was declared duly adopted on this 18th day of 

December 2023. 

 

AYES:  NAYS:   ABSENT:   ABSTAIN:  

 

_________                           _______     

RODRIGUEZ ROSS, PRESIDENT  JODI ZEIGLER, SECRETARY 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY'  DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

 

CERTIFIED 

I, Jodi Zeigler, hereby certify in my capacity as the Secretary of the DeSoto Parish 

Police Jury that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution 

passed by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury at a special meeting held on the 18th  day 

of December 2023, a quorum being present 

 

 __________   

 Jodi Zeigler, Secretary 

Page 79



 

The following resolution was offered by ________________ and seconded by __________________: 

 

 RESOLUTION 

 

A RESOLUTION INDICATING THE INTENTION OF THE DESOTO PARISH 

POLICE JURY, STATE OF LOUISIANA, TO APPROVE THE TWO (2) YEAR 

APPOINTMENT OF MICHAEL RISTER AS A DIRECTOR TO THE BOARD OF 

THE LOUISIANA LOCAL GOVERNMENT ENVIRONMENTAL FACILITIES AND 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (THE "AUTHORITY") AS 

PROVIDED BY CHAPTER 10-D OF TITLE 33 OF THE LOUISIANA REVISED 

STATUTES OF 1950, AS AMENDED. 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 10-D of Title 33 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended, 

comprised of R.S. 33:4548.1 through 4548.16 is known as the Louisiana Local Government 

Environmental Facilities and Community Development Authority Act (the "Act"); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Act creates the Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities and 

Community Development Authority (the "Authority") for the purpose of assisting political 

subdivisions, as defined in the Act, and other designated entities in acquiring, financing and 

constructing certain facilities, including environmental, public infrastructure, community and economic 

development purposes and to otherwise establish programs to aid in the financing of local government 

and economic development projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, State of Louisiana, previously passed a resolution 

to become a participating political subdivision of the Authority in accordance with the Act; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the governing authority of the DeSoto Parish 

Police Jury, State of Louisiana, acting in such capacity:  

 

Section 1. Approve the appointment of Michael Rister to serve as a Director of the Authority 

for a term of two (2) years from the date hereof. 

 

Section 2.  This resolution shall take effect immediately and a certified copy hereof shall be 

forwarded to the offices of the Authority. 

 

This resolution having been submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows: 

 

YEAS:  

 

NAYS: 

 

ABSTAIN: 

 

ABSENT:  

 

 

 

Page 80



 

 

 

 

 

And the resolution was declared adopted on this 18th day of December, 2023. 

 

 

_______________________    __________________________ 

ATTEST: Rodriguez Ross    Name: Jodi Zeigler 

Title: DeSoto Parish Police Jury President  Title: Secretary 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a 

Resolution adopted on December 18, 2023  by the governing authority of DeSoto Parish Police 

Jury, State of Louisiana, at a meeting thereof regularly convened and after proper notice thereof 

having been given, and I further certified that the same remains in full force and effect. 

 

THUS DONE AND SIGNED, THIS 18th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Title: Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR 

 

 

I, Rodriguez Ross, do hereby appoint Michael Rister, as a member of the Board of Directors of 

the Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities and Community Development 

Authority representing the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 

_

_________________________________ 

Name: Rodriguez Ross 

Title: DeSoto Parish Police Jury President 

 

 

Date: December 18, 2023      

 

Page 82



DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

2024 Holiday Schedule 

 

New Year’s Day      Jan 1   Monday    

Martin Luther King Day    Jan 15   Monday 

President’s Day     Feb 19   Monday 

Good Friday     Mar 29   Friday    

Memorial Day     May 27   Monday 

Juneteenth     June 19   Wednesday 

Independence Day    July 4   Thursday 

Labor Day     Sept 2   Monday 

Veterans Day     Nov. 11   Monday    

Thanksgiving      Nov 28-29  Thursday-Friday 

Christmas      Dec 24-25  Tuesday-Wednesday 

 

Parish Secretary: ______________________________________ 

 

Parish Administrator: __________________________________ 

 

 

 

Page 83



The DeSoto Parish Police Jury will hold Regular Police Jury Meetings at 5:00 pm in the Police Jury 
Meeting Room, Police Jury Building, Mansfield, Louisiana on the following dates: 
  
January   2, 2024 – Committee 
January  16 , 2024 – Regular 
February   5, 2024 – Committee 
February   20, 2024– Regular 
March  4, 2024 – Committee 
March  18, 2024 – Regular 
April   1, 2024 – Committee 
April   15, 2024 – Regular 
May   6, 2024 – Committee 
May  20, 2024 – Regular 
June   3, 2024 – Committee 
June   17, 2024- Regular 
July   1, 2024 – Committee 
July  15, 2024 – Regular 
August   5, 2024 – Committee 
August   19, 2024 – Regular 
September   3, 2024 – Committee 
September   16, 2024 – Regular 
October   7, 2024 – Committee 
October   21, 2024 – Regular 
November   4, 2024 – Committee 
November  18, 2024 – Regular 
December   2, 2024 – Committee 
December   16, 2024 – Regular 
  
/s/Rodriguez Ross, President                                        /s/Jodi Zeigler, Secretary 
DeSoto Parish Police Jury                                             DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

 

Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



 

 

          

 

 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury 
Police Jury 
 
 
An Evaluation of the DeSoto Parish 
Police Jury Compensation Plan 

 
 
 
 

November 2023 

Prepared by: 
  

SSA Consultants 
9331 Bluebonnet Boulevard   
Baton Rouge, LA 70810 
225-769-2676 
www.consultssa.com 
 

Page 181



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

2 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) in 2023 for professional consulting services for an evaluation of the DeSoto 
Parish Police Jury Compensation Plan for its approximately 186 full-time and part-time employees. The goal of the Compensation Plan 
evaluation was to develop a compensation program to meet a set of specific objectives including: 

• Collecting background data; 

• Gathering regional benefit data for comparison; 

• Performing job benchmarking and analysis; 

• Designing a proposed labor grade system; 

• Providing recommendations for implementation. 

 

SSA Consultants (SSA), a Louisiana-based business management and organizational design consulting firm with experience in conducing 
similar scopes of work, was engaged with the approval of the Parish and consulting activities began in August 2023. 

 

The first part of the project evaluated the current salary and benefit structure. The methodology included the following activities: 

• Review of the current pay structure and the development of consistency between each of the grades/steps; 

• Analysis of each job description and salary analyses for specific positions; 

• Review of the current compensation and benefit package for each job classification, including retirement benefit costs; and  

• Assessment of each job classification in relation to comparable classifications within the private and public sectors to determine the 
minimum compensation and benefit package for each job classification.   

 

INTRODUCTION 

Page 182



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

3 

The second part of the project focused on formulating a salary and benefit structure to ensure DeSoto Parish Police Jury remains an employer 
of choice. Activities included:  

• Identification of potential compensation issues and recommendations. 

• Development of externally competitive and internally equitable salary recommendations for each position; 

• Calculation of the estimated total cost for DeSoto Parish Police Jury to move employees who are below the market range to the market 
minimum;  

• Review of benefit package offered by DeSoto Parish Police Jury compared to regional peers; 

• Preparation of a report with the findings and recommendations for implementation.   

 

This report constitutes the final deliverable of the project. The report includes SSA’s findings and recommendations, along with a discussion 
of methodology, techniques, and data used to develop the findings and recommendations.  

 

  

Page 183



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

4 

To achieve the objectives established in the study, the first part of the project evaluated the current salary and benefit structure through the 
following activities:  

• Review of the current pay structure and the development of consistency between each of the grades/steps; 

• Analysis of each job description and salary analyses for specific positions; 

• Review of the current compensation and benefit package for each job classification, including retirement benefit costs; and 

• Assessment of each job classification in relation to comparable classifications within the private and public sectors to determine the 
minimum compensation and benefit package for each job classification. 

 

Methodology  

The project began with three key steps: 1) data request; 2) benefits review and analysis; and 3) job description review and comparative 
match. This section of the report provides a description of each steps.  

 

Data Request 

To begin the project, SSA collected background data from DeSoto Parish Police Jury to understand the current compensation and benefit plan 
and its structure. The data request included job descriptions, current pay plan and benefit information, organization charts and the table of 
organization, manuals or documents describing pay policies, and contact information for key leaders and other staff vital to the accuracy of 
information and the success of this project.  

 

Benefits Review and Analysis 

Next, SSA reviewed the employee benefit packages DeSoto Parish Police Jury offers its employees. The benefit packages review included the 
typical range of benefits offered by employers, including annual leave, sick leave, health insurance, and retirement. SSA compared the benefit 
packages offered by DeSoto Parish Police Jury to other regional public organizations.    

EVALUATION AND ASSESSMENT  

Page 184



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

5 

Job Description Review and Comparative Match  

Each position was reviewed using job descriptions provided by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury.  

 

Each job description was assessed and matched to comparable position descriptions within SSA’s database. DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s salary 
range for each position was then matched to the comparable regional market-based range and midpoint. This was reviewed by the DeSoto 
Parish Police Jury’s leadership.  

 

  

Page 185



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

6 

Comparative Salary Range Analysis  

This section of the report presents the salary range analysis which compares DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s salary range to the market-based 
salary ranges. Figure 1 provides a description of the column headers for the Salary Range Analysis chart (Figure 2).  

 

Figure 1. Description of Comparative Salary Range Analysis Charts  

Column Name Column Description 

Department The DeSoto Parish Police Jury department in which the job position is located. 

Position The DeSoto Parish Police Jury position title. 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury Min 
and Max 

The DeSoto Parish Police Jury minimum and maximum salary and wage. 

Market Min and Max The market-based minimum and maximum salary and wage. 

 

 

  

Page 186



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

7 

Figure 2. DeSoto Parish Police Jury Comparative Salary Range Analysis  

Position Title 
Labor Grade 

Minimum 
Labor Grade 
Maximum 

Market Minimum Market Maximum 

Accounting Clerk I ** $23,483 $35,235 $26,336 $39,504 

Accounts Payable Accountant * $39,811 $59,717 $41,814 $62,722 

Administrative Assistant/EEO Officer ** $28,038 $42,058 $33,111 $49,667 

Airport Manager $48,152 $72,259 $52,142 $78,212 

Animal Facility Director $55,473 $82,888 $53,634 $80,450 

Assistant Road Superintendent ** $63,419 $95,139 $63,998 $95,998 

Assistant Solid Waste Superintendent – Collection 
System 

$55,369 $83,054 $56,628 $84,942 

Assistant Solid Waste Superintendent – Landfill $53,747 $80,641 $55,804 $83,706 

Assistant Treasurer $54,184 $81,244 $58,307 $87,461 

Assistant Maintenance Superintendent $48,443 $72,675 $50,000 $75,000 

Case Manager * $23,982 $34,570 $27,189 $40,783 

Civil Engineer $81,338 $122,006 $82,784 $124,177 

Class A Driver $29,910 $44,907 $36,087 $54,131 

Compactor Site Operator $10.16 -- $11.95 $17.92 

Page 187



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

8 

Position 
Labor Grade 

Minimum 
Labor Grade 
Maximum 

Market Minimum Market Maximum 

Computer Operations Specialist $70,387 $105,560 $69,917 $104,875 

Director of Planning, Development, and Property 
Standards 

$66,851 $83,699 $66,017 $99,025 

Director of Solid Waste Special Programs & Events $32,843 $45,989 $35,161 $52,741 

Engineering Technician ** $44,408 $67,766 $49,107 $73,661 

Equipment Operator ** $21,757 $32,656 $24,153 $36,229 

Executive Administrative Assistant to Parish 
Administrator 

$53,747 $77,126 $52,702 $79,054 

Executive Director of Community Services $49,878 $74,817 $50,302 $75,452 

General Office Clerk – Finance ** $21,986 $31,699 $25,767 $38,651 

General Office Clerk – Maintenance & Airport ** $23,275 $33,571 $31,777 $47,665 

General Office Clerk – Road ** $23,982 $34,570 $28,335 $42,503 

Grant Writer $49,750 $74,624 $54,830 $82,243 

Heavy Equipment Operator II – Road ** $43,638 $63,045 $47,181 $70,771 

Heavy Equipment Operator II – SW ** $43,638 $63,045 $49,110 $73,664 

Heavy Equipment Operator I – Road ** $37,419  $56,098  $41,490 $62,234 

Heavy Equipment Operator I – Solid Waste ** $37,419  $56,098  $41,490 $62,234 

Page 188



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

9 

Position 
Labor Grade 

Minimum 
Labor Grade 
Maximum 

Market Minimum Market Maximum 

HR Director ** $48,339  $87,880  $70,368 $105,552 

HUD Clerk *  $11.53 $16.62 $14.20 $21.30 

Janitor $20,093  $30,160 $22,486 $33,730 

Kennel Supervisor (ACO) ** $49,774  $74,672  $38,920 $58,380 

Kennel Technician I ** $29,058  $43,597  $30,035 $45,053 

Kennel Technician II/Animal Control Officer ** $33,862  $50,710  $33,915 $50,873 

Laborer $21,757  $32,656  $22,032 $33,048 

Lead Road Foreman ** $44,096  $66,144  $52,377 $78,565 

LIHEAP Coordinator * $31,824 $47,623 $31,696 $47,544 

Lineman ** $28,142 $42,224  $35,119 $52,679 

Maintenance Superintendent $70,220  $101,088  $70,150 $105,226 

Maintenance Technician $38,771  $58,157  $37,854 $56,780 

Manager Assistant/Superintendent $23,982  $34,570 $30,826 $46,240 

Mechanic II – SW ** $39,125 $58,698 $39,170 $58,754 

Mechanic II – Road ** $42,682  $64,022  $39,170 $58,754 

Page 189



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

10 

Position 
Labor Grade 

Minimum 
Labor Grade 
Maximum 

Market Minimum Market Maximum 

Mechanic – SW ** $33,238  $49,837 $35,674 $53,510 

Mechanic – Road ** $33,238  $49,837  $35,674 $53,510 

Mosquito Control Officer $37,461  $56,243  $37,518 $56,276 

Office Assistant ** $28,038  $42,058  $28,335 $42,503 

Office Supervisor $36,754  $55,141 $37,261 $55,891 

Parish Administrator $98,342  $147,513  $103,908 $155,862 

Parish Engineer N/A N/A $108,353 $162,529 

Parish Secretary $36,754  $55,141 $39,149 $58,723 

Parish Treasurer $83,137  $124,696  $91,885 $137,827 

Park Attendant $9.38 -- $10.21 $15.32 

Payroll Accountant * $39,811 $59,717 $43,254 $64,880 

Permit Officer Foreman $40,456 $60,694 $49,190 $73,784 

Permit Officer $32,386 $48,547 $33,390 $50,084 

Public Works Engineer $61,796 $95,513 $68,714 $103,070 

Purchasing Agent * $32,698 $55,473 $43,894 $64,842 

Page 190



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

11 

Position 
Labor Grade 

Minimum 
Labor Grade 
Maximum 

Market Minimum Market Maximum 

Road Foreman ** $36,754 $55,141 $43,770 $65,656 

Road Superintendent $72,924 $109,387 $73,324 $109,986 

Scale Clerk $23,982 $34,570 $24,948 $37,422 

Section 8 Supervisor ** $30,722 $46,072 $36,739 $55,109 

Shop Foreman ** $38,501 $57,762 $44,516 $66,774 

Solid Waste Superintendent $78,041 $112,382 $77,815 $116,723 

Traffic Control Tech – Permit Officer $30,826 $46,238 $32,474 $48,712 

Weatherization Crew Installer ** $31,512 $47,278 $33,864 $50,796 

Weatherization Crew Leader $42,848 $64,272 $43,069 $64,603 

Weatherization Energy Auditor ** $40,456 $60,694 $50,072 $75,108 

Weatherization Clerk $27,373 $40,622 $27,849 $41,773 

Weatherization Coordinator $46,384 $66,747 $52,700 $79,050 

 
* Indicates a Position Title Change and change to Duties & Responsibilities 
** Indicates a change to Duties & Responsibilities 
  

Page 191



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

12 

Comparative Benefit Package Analysis 

SSA reviewed DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s benefit package which includes annual leave, sick leave, health insurance, retirement, and other 
benefits.  

 

Annual Leave Policy 

Figure 3 depicts DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s current annual leave system which allows for the accumulation of annual leave days earned.  

 

Figure 3. DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Annual Leave 

 

Years of Service Total Annual Leave Days Earned Per Year 

0 – 5 years 10 days 

6 – 15 years 15 days 

16 years and up 20 days 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 192



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

13 

Figure 4. compares the Annual Leave accumulation of South Louisiana Parishes by Years of Service. 

 

Figure 4. Annual Leave Comparison – DeSoto Parish Police Jury to Regional and Similar Sized Peers 

 

 
Figure 4 Notes: 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s annual leave policy is comparable to its regional peers. 
 
 

 

Years of 
Service 

DeSoto Parish 
Police Jury 

Years of 
Service 

Allen Parish 
Years of 
Service 

Caddo Parish 
Years of 
Service 

Harrison 
County (TX) 

Years of 
Service 

Webster Parish 

0 – 5 years 10 days 1 year 5 days 0 – 1 years 9 days 0 – 9 years 10 days 
0  years and 

up 
10 days 

6 – 15 years 15 days 2 – 6 years 10 days 1 – 4 years 12 days 10 years 15 days   

16 years 
and up 

20 days 7-14 years 15 days 5 – 9 years 16.5 days 11 years 16 days   

  15 – 19 years 20 days 
10 – 14 
years 

18 days 12 years 17 days   

  20 – 24 years 25 days 
15 years 
and up 

21 days 13 years 18 days   

  
25 years and 

up 
30 days   14 years 19 days   

      
15 years and 

up 
20 days   

Page 193



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

14 

Sick Leave Policy 

Figure 5 compares DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s annual sick leave earned amounts with those of regional peers. 

Figure 5. Sick Leave Comparison – DeSoto Parish Police Jury to Regional and Similar Sized Peers 

Sick Leave 

Total Annual Days Earned 

Years of Service 
DeSoto Parish Police 

Jury 
Allen Parish Caddo Parish Harrison County (TX) Webster Parish 

Day 1 and up 12 days 13 days 12 + days 10 days 12 days 

 

Figure 6 Notes:  

• DeSoto Parish Police Jury does not have a maximum accrual limit for sick leave. Accumulated sick leave, or a portion thereof, may be 
converted to additional retirement benefit credit upon application for normal retirement, based on the rules and regulations 
determined by the retirement system to which they contribute. 
 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s sick leave policy is comparable to other regional peers. 

  

Page 194



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

15 

Bereavement Leave Policy 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury full-time employees receive up to 3 days of paid bereavement leave that may be used in the event of a death. Part-
time and temporary employees will be granted leave up to 3 days without pay. Comparable organizations offered one to five days of 
Emergency, Bereavement, Personal Leave, or a combination of all three.  

DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s bereavement offering is comparable to its regional peer group. 

 

 

Holidays 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s holiday policy allows full-time employees, who work at least 30 hours per week, to observe 12 paid holidays per 
year. Any holiday that occurs on a Saturday or Sunday is observed on the closest workday. 

1. New Year’s Day 
2. Dr. Martin Luther King Day 
3. President’s Day 
4. Good Friday 
5. Memorial Day 
6. Juneteenth 

 

7. Independence Day 
8. Labor Day 
9. Veteran’s Day 
10. Thanksgiving Day 
11. Day After Thanksgiving 
12. Christmas Eve 
13. Christmas Day 

 

 

The regional peer groups offered 13 paid holidays per year. Differences were seen where some parishes did not offer Christmas Eve or Day 
After Thanksgiving, and some offered Columbus Day, Election Day, and Mardi Gras.  

 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s holiday policy is comparable when compared to their regional peer group. 

Page 195



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

16 

Health Insurance 

Figure 6 compares DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s monthly employee contributions, annual deductible, co-insurance, and the annual out-of-
pocket maximum to those of regional peers.  

Figure 6. Health Insurance Comparison – DeSoto Parish Police Jury Compared to Regional and Similar Sized Peers 

 

Figure 6 Notes:  

Health Insurance Plan 

Medical Premium 
DeSoto Parish Police 

Jury 
Allen Parish Caddo Parish 

Harrison County 
(TX) 

Webster Parish 

Monthly Employee Contributions 

Employee Only $192.88 
See Allen Parish 

Note 
$229.41 $60 $142.03 

Employee + Family  $549.72 
See Allen Parish 

Note 
$652.80 $470 $427.22 

Annual Deductible (Individual/Family) 

In-Network $1,000/ $3,000 
See Allen Parish 

Note 
$1,000/$3,000 $1,250/ $3,750 

$1,000 per 
individual 

Out-of-Network $2,000/ $6,000 
See Allen Parish 

Note 
$1,000/ $3,000 $3,000/$6,000 

Co-Insurance (Percentage Owed by Employee) 

In-Network 20% 
See Allen Parish 

Note 
20% 30% 20% 

Out-of-Network 40% 
See Allen Parish 

Note 
40% 50% 40% 

Annual Out-of-Pocket Maximum (Individual/Family) 

In-Network $5,250 / $10,500 
See Allen Parish 

Note 
$2,700 / $5,400 $6,350 / $12,700 $2,000/ $2,000 

Out-of-Network 
 

$10,500 / $21,000 
See Allen Parish 

Note 
$2,700 / $5,400 No Max $4,000/ $4,000  

Page 196



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

17 

• Allen Parish does not offer health insurance to employees. They offer a Health Savings Plan with the assumption that 
employees will provide their own health insurance from a provider outside of the parish.  

• Caddo Parish is expecting a 5% increase in health insurance. 

• APPJ no longer offers group insurance. Instead, APPJ contributes $150/month to IRS-eligible HSA for employees 
 

Figure 7 compares DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s co-payment amounts (for common drug benefit categories) to a group 
of regional peers. 
 

Figure 7. Prescription Drug Benefit Comparison – DeSoto Parish Police Jury to Regional Peers 

Prescription Drug Benefit Co-Pays Retail 

Parish 
DeSoto 
Parish 

Police Jury 
Allen Parish Caddo Parish 

Harrison 
County 

(TX) 
Webster Parish 

Status 
In & Out of 

Network 
 In & Out of Network 

Network 
In & Out of 

Network 
In & Out of Network 

Network 

Tier 1 – 
Generic 

$10 
See Allen Parish 

Note $15 $10 $7 

Tier 2 – 
Preferred 

$35 
See Allen Parish 

Note 
$25 $35 $25 

Tier 3 –  
Non-
Preferred 

$70 
See Allen Parish 

Note $55 $50 $45 

Tier 4 –  
Injectables 

N/A 
See Allen Parish 

Note 
N/A $85 $50 

 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury offers health insurance that is comparable to its regional peers.  

Page 197



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

18 

Retirement  

The Parish participates in the Parochial Employee’s Retirement System of Louisiana (PERS), Plan B. All eligible employees of the 
Parish (except those specifically excluded) must become members of the system. The system provides benefits to all parishes except 
Orleans, East Baton Rouge, and Lafourche. All Parish employees who are members of Plan B are eligible to retire and receive normal 
benefits if they have credit for at least 7 years of Plan B service and are at least 67 years of age, 10 years of service and at least 62 
years of age, or at least 30 years of Plan B service and are at least 55 years of age. Normal retirement benefits are paid for the life of 
the retiree. Currently, each employee is required to contribute 3% tax deferred income to the retirement plan. Employees are 
vested with seven years of service credit; however, the member must reach one of the following ages and service dates before they 
are eligible for normal retirement: 

• 7 years at age 67 
• 10 years at age 62 
• 30 years at age 55 

 
Seven years of service are required for disability retirement. The employer contribution rate for the 2023 fiscal year is 7.5% of total 
member/employee earnings. Employees retirement allowance is equal to two percent of the member's final average compensation 
multiplied by his years of creditable service. 
 
The Parochial Employees Retirement System offers standard retirement options for parishes located in Louisiana. The DeSoto 
Parish Police Jury offers Plan B, designed for those employers that remain within the Social Security system, which requires lower 
employee (3%) and employer (7.5%) contribution rates and the member can receive a retirement allowance equal to two percent 
of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his or her years of creditable service. 

 

Other Notable Employee Benefits  

DeSoto Parish Police Jury offers additional employee benefits including dental insurance, basic life insurance, and vision insurance.  
 
Supplemental insurance is completely voluntary and not covered by DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 
 
DeSoto Parish Police Jury offers employee benefits that are generally comparable to those of other regional peers.  

Page 198



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

19 

Compensation Philosophy Considerations 

A robust compensation plan is the cornerstone of a thriving and sustainable workforce, playing a pivotal role in employee retention. 
In the dynamic landscape of today's professional world, attracting and retaining top talent is a formidable challenge. Organizations 
that recognize the significance of a well-structured compensation plan are better positioned to cultivate a loyal and high-performing 
team. 

A competitive compensation plan is a powerful magnet for attracting skilled individuals. In a job market where talents are sought 
after, offering an attractive salary and benefits package becomes a key differentiator. Prospective employees are naturally drawn to 
organizations that value their contributions and demonstrate this through a compelling compensation plan. This initial attraction 
sets the stage for a positive employer-employee relationship. 

However, the impact of a robust compensation plan extends far beyond the recruitment phase. It plays a crucial role in fostering a 
sense of financial security and stability among employees. When individuals feel adequately rewarded for their efforts, they are 
more likely to remain committed to their current employer. This financial well-being translates into job satisfaction and a reduced 
likelihood of seeking alternative employment opportunities. 

Moreover, a well-structured compensation plan reflects an organization's commitment to recognizing and rewarding performance. It 
serves as a tangible expression of appreciation for the hard work and dedication of employees. In turn, this recognition contributes 
to a positive work culture and motivates employees to consistently perform at their best. When individuals feel that their 
contributions are acknowledged and appropriately compensated, they are more inclined to invest in the success of the organization. 

Employee retention is not solely about financial remuneration; it also involves addressing the diverse needs of individuals. A 
comprehensive compensation plan goes beyond a competitive salary, encompassing benefits such as health insurance, retirement 
plans, and professional development opportunities. These additional perks contribute to the overall well-being of employees and 
demonstrate a holistic approach to their needs. As a result, employees are more likely to view their current workplace as a long-
term partner in their career journey. 

A robust compensation plan is a linchpin in the realm of employee retention. It serves as a potent tool for attracting top talent, 
fostering financial stability, recognizing performance, and addressing the diverse needs of employees. Organizations that prioritize 
and invest in a comprehensive compensation strategy are better equipped to build a loyal, motivated, and high-performing 
workforce—a critical asset in the pursuit of sustained success in today's competitive business environment. 

Page 199



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

20 

Recommendations 

The following recommendations are provided to DeSoto Parish Police Jury.   

Recommendation 1:  
Establish Salary Ranges with Current Market-Based Minimums and Maximums for All Job Positions 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury should establish salary ranges, including minimums and maximums, for all positions utilizing market-
based salary data. This adjustment will address the identified positions that fall below the market-based range.  

Recommendation 2:  
Bring Incumbents into the Market Range 

The Parish should bring the salaries of all incumbents who currently fall below the established minimum into the provided 
ranges. This adjustment will address the identified incumbents who are below the market minimum. This will also help retain 
current employees and ensure that new employees in those job classifications receive competitive pay.  
 

At the request of DeSoto Parish Police Jury, SSA has estimated the total cost for bringing the identified incumbents whose 
current pay rate is below the market minimum up to the market minimum rate. The following shows the total annual cost 
estimate for bringing employees up to the market minimum. The rates have been annualized and combined to provide a total 
yearly cost for DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 

Total Annual Cost Estimate: $55,101.80 

 

Page 200



 
 

An Evaluation of DeSoto Parish Police Jury’s Compensation and Benefit Plan – November 2023  
 

21 

   

Recommendation 3:  
Conduct Market-Based Compensation Review Every Three to Five Years 
 
DeSoto Parish Police Jury should, in compliance with best practices, conduct a market-based compensation review every three to 
five years to ensure compensation and benefits retain internal equity and external competitiveness. 
 
 

Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Ghange Order
No. _3

Date of lssuance: 11-20-2023 Effective Date: 11-20-2023

Prol€ct: Desolo Parlsh Road & Dralnage
lmprovomarls - Charl're Jones, Daw, Mounc€ and Nash
Rosds - 2016 FEMA

Conlract: Oosblo P8rbh Roed & Dralnag€ lmprovernenB - Charlie Jonos, Daw, Momco and Nash Roads - m18
FEMA

of Conlract:

Conlraclor: Regional Construcllon, LLC Prolect No.:

The Contract Doctrmenls ar6 modified as follotfls upon execution of this Change Order:

The purpose of this change order is to create a new item for a sheet pile headwal! (Mounce Road). The total
overrun for this change order is $44,331.84. This cost is a repair stemmlng from the May 11 & 12,2023
storm. Pictures are aftached to show the damages and some of the repairs.

(see attached page)

Attachmenls: (Lisl documonls supportlng change):

contract No.: 14263-550 LADeSoto Parish Police Jury

Change order item sproadshe€l
Regional's item cost breakdorvn
Piclures

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES:

Original Contract Price:

$ 535.196.00

lncrease from previously approved Change Orders
No. 0 loNo. 2 :

s '112.551.15

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:

$64t.747.15

Dale: Date:

Approved by Funding Agency (if epplicable)

Origlnal Contract Times: ! Working days I Calendar days
Substantial completion (days ordate): 120

Ready for final payment (days or date): 150

flncrease] tOeereaeel from previously approved Change Orders
No.______Q_ to No. 2 :

Substantial complelion (days): 178

Ready for final paymenl (days):

lncreasel tDeereasel of this Change Order: llncreasel IDecrease] of this Ghange Order:

Substantial completion (days or date): 0

$ 44.331.84 Ready for final payment (days or date): 0

Contract Price incorporating lhis Change Order: Contract Times with all approved Change Orders:

Substantial complelion (days or date): 298

$ 692.078.99 Ready for final payment (days or date): 328

NDED: ACCEPTED:

By: By:

Engino6r Ou,ner (Authorizcd Signalure) Cmlractof Slonatue)

,n", // /2o /z 3
Date:_

E,ICDC No. C-9,1t (2002 Edilion)
l'reprred hy thc Engimeers'Joinl Contrsct Documents Conrmifiec nnd cndorsed by thc
Associatcd Gencrnl Conlrf,ctors ofAmcricn rnd lhe Conslluction Spcciticnlions lnslilutc.

Pnge I of I

174

Contract Times prior to this Change Order:

Substantial completion (days or date): 298

Ready for final payment (daF or date): 328

ll-ln^?^8

Page 208



Creale ltem C|-000-20GEN "General (Steel Headwall on Mounce Road)" with a quantity of 1 each al a unit price of
$44,331.84,

This item is being created to compensate the contractor for constructing a steel pile headwall at the end of the tank cars
on Mounce Road. The original plans had 55# riptap placed along the front slope of the roadway from the top of the
roadway to the boltom of the creek channel. The ends of the tank cars are very close to the edge of the road, therefore,
the slope was almost too steep to support the riprap during normal conditions, much lsss during an actual slorm event
that occurred on May 11fl'and 12'h, 2023. The storm washed out the riprap and came very cloge to undermining the
roadway. To install the riprap in the same manner as before would only invile lhe same end result on lhe next storm. The
contractor provided a cost to restore the riprap to pre-storm conditions and the cost was $35,162.40. Several solutions
were reviewed, from extending the three tank cars, building a concrele headwall, driving piles between the tank cars,
building long riprap dikes to reduce the steepness of the slopes, to welding sheet piles onto the ends of the tank cars. lt
was determined that welding sheet piles as headwalls was the least evasive of the solutions. The contraclor provided a
cost breakdown that is reasonable and based on actual hours. The cost to install the headwall was $44,331.84.

EJCDC No. C-941 (XO02 Edition)
I'repnrcd by thc D[ginccr's'Joinl Contlsct l)ocunterrls Cottttnittcc antl cndorscd lty thc
..\ssocintcd Gencral Contractors ofAmcrica nnd thc Conslrrtctlorr Specilicrlions lnstilutt.

Prgc 2 of I

Page 209



zaz
E=&,drrl d>lrroo
!2
L^ :)o

U

+6
.j
ro
m
+tItt

\
co:g

sf
oq
H(o
(o
+st

v)

o

-oo

\t
E
Soo

ll
rO
E
UJo
&,o
tu(,
Z
-(J
Io
f-
o
(J
J

FoFJiatEas
5d
F

og
o

+
og
rl
m
ff)
+
<trrl

!

o

=.d.
o
c
f
o

=o
3!ooE
a,q,
q

z
l!
(9oN
oooJ(J

=t!b

cFz
o
I

r{
r{

U

c
o
Ia
ta
tr
o(,
(!
C
o
boo
&

e.
oFU
Fz
o
U

l-u
UJ
Ith
c,

=
lh
m
E,ul<g>o

tl, urr! (,
-lGt Z
CLF{ do- a.t +
ON.J

B
o

E
OJ

e,g
!
o.

tr5

tr5

\
cv

Page 210



Constnrclion Contlact Cltange Order

BITEAKDOWN (STEEI, PII.ING HEADWALL)

ofLouisinna Brealidorvr No.

Ilenl No.

RFI No. (or COR, CPR, ctc.)
Dste:

r]PPJ FEMA 2016

1

t U14t2023

Planning & Control

Projcct No.

No.

Nnnre:

] ITI'GIONAL CONSTRI.I(]1-I()N

Cost of Work :

A, Lrbor Check hcrc if cxplained on the Corntnen I Hourly Wage Hours 'l'otal Cost

I
2

3

4

5

6
7

LABORER tr
D
tr
D
o
0
D

$ 16.00 $1,593.00
t?88.00--- st,r66m

$1,275.00
$0.00
$,0.00

s0.00
s.1,376.00

OPERATOR

TOREMAN
wULDER

Add Labor l3urden @ 28.(n o/"

LABOR TOTAI, lT6Jr-r.il|

B. l\litcrirl Llnit Unit t.lnits Total Cost

I

2

4

5

6

1

8

4O'STEEL tr

tr
tr
tr
tr
tr

$ t 1,000.00

s450.00
s6s0.00

52,50o.oo

(Copies of invoices nrly be requilcd.)

CY
Add Tax @ 9-95 oti

MATERIAL TO AL

$2,75tJ.00

$0.00
s0.00- , -Tom

s I,726.00

f$rr-;a06-l

Unit tJnit
hr

Units Tolal Cost
C. Eqtripnlcrlt

tr
o
D
tr
tr
tr
tr

s $6930.00
$ l32o.o0
$2,500.90
$ 1296.00

$2,168.00
s0.00

---- $030
$0.00

I

2

7

4

5

6

ffiIFT''
WELDINGMACHINE

(Copies of invoices maY be rerluired.) @
o/o

FQUIPMEN',I I'OTAL fsrl:ffi]

TOTAI., DIRECT COSI' IIOR TIIIS BREAKDOWN

Overfiead & Profit

Grrnd Tual

f$J-r-[r.o,rl

$4.749.84

fEr'i4-l

i I 10.00 hr 12,1

lrr 20.0

2.00 hr
25.5r85.00 hr

hr

Page 211



TI

i-:r'l
.t,

;q

I

'{

:f,

a\

!

_: .'--

"i 
j"

i

i

ium
J.

t,

I
&
,l

.,r.F

t

t a.'

F

I

?:

f -l

r i.

?

, ,..'

fl

'rlt
)

s

l

,

Page 212



,!

.,.

4

',jf

I

i. i \

')

,:.

i;

i "t'

t',,i,.

rl

Page 213



,rffi

>,;

t

qr

i

I

Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226


	Top
	A.	Steve Brown
	B.	Philip Daniels
	1.	Ad valorem tax
	2.	Administrators Report
	3.	Chance McNeely
	DPPJ Report - December 2023

	4.	Financial Statement
	November 30, 2023

	5.	Minutes
	11-20-23 Regular Meeting Minutes Document
	11-28-23 Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	11-27-23 Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	12-4-23 Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	12-4-23 Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	12-4-23 Policy and Procedures Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	12-4-23 Buildings and Properties & Parks and Recreational Committee Minutes Document
	12-4-23 Solid Waste Committee Minutes Document
	12-4-23 Administrative Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	12-4-23 Special Meeting Minutes Document
	12-4-23 Insurance Committee Minutes Document
	12-4-23 Road Committee Meeting Minutes Document

	6.	Enterprise Zone
	2010 EZ Listing DeSoto
	Desoto EZ Decennial Packet 2nd notice
	2020 EZ Listing DeSoto
	Census Tract 9501.01 BG 2 FINAL
	Census Tract 9502 BG 3 FINAL
	Census Tract 9507 BG 1 FINAL
	Census Tract Various Final
	Census Tract 9503 BG 2 FINAL
	Census Tract Parish Overall Final
	Census Tract SEVERAL MANSFIELD Final

	7.	La Midstream
	DPPJ Indemnification Executed 20231206
	Staci Donaldson Louisiana Midstream Gas Services LLC Expires 20241231

	8.	Reimbursement
	9.	2024 Budget
	Operating Resolution 2024

	10.	LCDA Resolution
	12-20-23 LCDA Resolution

	11.	Holiday Schedule
	2024 Holiday

	12.	Meeting Schedule
	2024 Meeting Dates

	13.	2024 Liquor
	14.	Tourism Budget
	DeSoto Tourism Budget

	15.	CPA
	CPA Engagement Letter

	16.	Johnson Controls
	Johnson Control Renewal

	17.	2024 Property/Casualty
	Property Insurance

	18.	Compensation Study
	DeSoto Parish Compensation Report_SSA Consultnants_FINAL REPORT_V2 11212023

	19.	Step increase
	Step Increase

	20.	Cody Lane
	Change Order #1 - MM & Regional Signed

	21.	2016 FEMA
	2016 FEMA C.O. #3 REGCON SIGNED

	22.	Brazzel Road
	Brazzel

	23.	Pat Loftus
	Pat Loftus Fence

	24.	Municipal Solid Waste
	Bottom

